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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRSE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or
“Directors”), | am pleased to present the 2016 full year results
of Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and
including subsidiaries, the “Group”, “we" or “us”).

The Group delivered results ahead of expectations in 2016,
benefiting from environmental protection and supply-side
reforms implemented by the Chinese government on many
industries including the paper manufacturing industry. The
aggressive elimination of outdated capacity resulted in notable
improvements towards the supply-demand imbalance in the
corrugated paper packaging industry. In the latter half of the
fourth quarter, buoyant demand for corrugated paper ware
resulted in extremely short supply and a recovery in selling
prices, first to more reasonable levels and later to new highs
not seen in years, generating better than expected profits for
the Group.

Since the global financial crisis in 2008, the Group has lived
through an uncertain global financial and political environment,
with the economic recovering at an anemic pace. Chinese
economic growth has also slowed down in recent years, and
the Renminbi went from a trend of appreciation to one of
depreciation, creating a very difficult business environment.
The Group transformed its business model and marketing
strategy as a result of these sentiment and market changes,
shifting our focus from exports to domestic sales, as well as
focusing on corrugated paper products with shorter production
and sales cycles. Our upstream corrugating medium and
linerboard were originally designed to be fully internally utilized
for the downstream business for manufacturing corrugated
paper boards and carton boxes, but in recent years some
of these have been directly sold to end customers. These
measures, in addition to the Chinese government’s supply-side
reforms in recent years, have brought about a turnaround in
the Group's business.

Aside from the above changes, the Group continues to improve
production processes and implement technical upgrades to
production equipment, which allow us to control costs and
reduce wastage, and at the same time increase production
capacity at minimal cost, resulting in peak production efficiency
for our production equipment. The Group's new series of
environmental protection equipment started operations over
the course of 2016. All engineering works were completed
at the end of the year, and the new equipment are now in
operation. Our new equipment would be able to meet new
standards in the event the Ministry of Environmental Protection
raises environmental protection requirements.
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The Group's financial situation remained healthy throughout
2016. Although the Group did not receive the remaining
proceeds from the disposal of a subsidiary until the end of
the year, the Group had adequate working capital to fund
additions to environmental protection equipment and technical
improvements to production equipment. Due to the spike
in demand for corrugated paper ware in the latter half of
the fourth quarter, selling prices jumped several times and
customers had to partially pre-pay for orders to be accepted.
This meant a rise in the Group's cash position. At the end of
the year, the Group's net gearing ratio fell below zero and our
balance sheet went into net cash. The Group was also once
able to keep bad debts at negligible levels, and our financial
situation remains highly prudent.

Looking ahead to 2017, we expect interest rate increases in
the United States, the elimination of outdated capacity in China
and the depreciation of the Renminbi would continue to impact
economic development. That said, the Chinese government
should be able to implement effective measures from time to
time to maintain stable economic growth. In addition, supply-
side reforms have brought about continued improvements to
the over-supply situation in the corrugated paper packaging
industry. We thus believe the industry has climbed out of the
slump and the situation should further improve.

In 2017, the Group expects to continue with technical
improvements to production equipment and to add to auxiliary
equipment in order to increase production capacity by around
20% at minimal cost. This should result in productivity
improvements and will allow the Group to provide more high
quality corrugated paper products to customers. We will strive
to continue to utilize our competitive advantage as a vertically
integrated company, and tightly control costs in order to offset
the pressure of rising operating costs and deliver stable long
term growth in profits for the Group.

Lastly, | would like to take this opportunity to thank the
management team and staff and to give thanks to their unity
and support against various challenges and issues, and to give
thanks to our customers, suppliers, bankers and investors for
their unending support. We will continue to strive to bring
better returns to our shareholders.

Hui Sum Kwok
Chairman
31st March, 2017
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A MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, the supply and demand situation in the corrugated
paper packaging industry became more balanced, and the
Group’s sales volume and average selling prices both made
gains, lifting overall revenue by 10.6% compared to 2015.
Domestic sales and exports accounted for 80% and 20% of
revenue. Revenue in the first half rose by 3% compared to
the first half of 2015. Revenue in the second half rose by
27% compared to the first half, and by 17% compared to the
second half of 2015, primarily due to increases in both sales
volume and pricing in the latter half of the fourth quarter of the
year.

The Group's upstream containerboard business produces
corrugating medium and linerboard primarily for the Group's
downstream corrugated packaging business, making
corrugated paper boards and carton boxes, but the Group can
also sell upstream products directly to customers depending on
market conditions. Due to improvements in production capacity
and efficiency after technical improvements, more than 40%
of upstream products could be directly sold to customers.
Upstream and downstream sales accounted for 38% and 62%
of revenue respectively, with upstream sales rising 32% and
equipment utilization reaching nearly 90%; downstream sales
rose slightly by 0.4% with equipment utilization reaching nearly
60%. Excluding the impact of Renminbi depreciation, revenue
growth exceeded 20%.

The Group's main raw material, waste paper, is sourced from
both domestic and overseas markets. Although average price
for waste paper rose by around 10% compared to 2015, and
wages and related costs also faced upward pressure, the
technical improvements resulted in improved productivity
and reduced wastage. This combined with improved working
capital for the Group and the resulting reduction in financing
costs meant the Group was able to deliver 103% growth in
profit from operation for the full year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating results

Despite Renminbi depreciation in 2016, surge in demand in
the latter half of the fourth quarter of 2016 led to steep rise in
selling prices and sales volume, resulting in growth in revenue
by 10.6%. Revenue climbed from HK$1,066.5 million in 2015
to HK$1,179.4 million in 2016.

Cost of sales rose 6.8% from HK$853.9 million to HK$911.7
million. The rise in costs of sales was less than the rise in
revenue on account of improvement in production process,
contributing 25.9% increase to gross profit. Gross profit soared
from HK$212.7 million to HK$267.7 million. Gross profit margin
rose from 19.9% to 22.7%.

The increase in other income from HK$13.3 million to HK$14.7
million was primarily due to exchange gain arising from fixed
deposits.

Selling and distribution costs increased 10.1% from HK$61.4
million to HK$67.6 million. The change was in line with the
growth in revenue.

There was an increase of 9.7% in administrative expenses
from HK$88.6 million to HK$97.2 million. It was predominantly
due to increment in staff cost and performance bonus.

Other expenses rose HK$1.4 million from HK$23.2 million to
HK$24.6 million. The increase was mainly attributed to the
exchange loss arising from receivables from disposal of a
subsidiary, from HK$3.9 million to HK$5.3 million.

A decline in finance costs of HK$5.7 million, from HK$10.7
million to HK$5.0 million, was owing to less bank borrowings
required throughout the year.

Profit from operation (profit for the year excluding the change
in present value in respect of receivables from disposal of a
subsidiary and the corresponding exchange difference) climbed
from HK$40.2 million to HK$81.7 million, representing an
increase of 103.2%. Profit margin from operation improved
from 3.8% 10 6.9%.

Profit for the year surged HK$40.1 million, from HK$36.3
million in 2015 to HK$76.4 million in 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWR D

Liquidity, financial and capital resources

At 31st December, 2016, the Group’'s total cash and cash
equivalents were HK$547.6 million (31st December, 2015:
HK$151.6 million), mostly denominated in Renminbi. The
tremendous increase was mainly due to the remaining 49%
cash consideration received near year end of 2016 in respect
of the disposal of a subsidiary.

Total bank borrowings increased from HK$194.8 million to
HK$286.5 million in view of the restriction imposed by the
Chinese government in transferring Renminbi out of the PRC.
Current bank borrowings rose HK$152.5 million while non-
current bank borrowings dropped HK$60.8 million. At 31st
December, 2016, net gearing ratio (net bank borrowings to
total equity) fell from 2.9% to -17.9%. The group recorded
net cash (total cash and cash equivalents less total bank
borrowings) of HK$261.1 million.

Net current assets and current ratio of the Group were
HK$259.2 million (31st December, 2015: HK$316.2 million) and
1.46 (31st December, 2015: 1.94) respectively.

The Group spent HK$131.4 million on capital expenditures for
maintenance, environmental protection facilities, and technical
upgrade to the production lines and the ancillary facilities.

Debtors turnover days improved from 64 days to 47 days.
It was mainly contributed by cash received in advance from
customers in December 2016 for the surge in sales orders.
Stock and creditors turnover days were regarded as stable,
being 42 days (2015: 56 days) and 52 days (2015: 42 days)
respectively.

Contingent liabilities

The tax audits conducted by the Inland Revenue Department
("IRD"”) on the Company and its subsidiaries for the years
of assessment 2004/2005 to 2010/2011 are still on-going.
The IRD had issued protective assessments for the years of
assessment 2004/2005 to 2010/2011 to certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Objections were lodged against all these
assessments. The Directors believe that no additional provision
for Hong Kong profits tax is necessary at the present stage.
The outcome and impact of this matter cannot be determined
with reasonable certainty.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK

We expect the global economy to continue to improve but at
a slow pace, and Renminbi depreciation is expected to be on
a more limited scale. Although selling prices fell in the first
quarter of 2017, the over-supply situation in the industry has
seen improvements, and we expect to regain pricing power
and reasonably transfer increases in operating costs to our
customers. We will stay the course with our core strategy to
improve production efficiency, increase sales volume, reduce
raw materials wastage and energy use in order to alleviate cost
increases, and strive to improve the Group's earnings.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2016, the Group and the processing
factory employed a total workforce of around 1,100 full time
staff (2015: 1,100). Competitive remuneration packages were
offered to employees. The Group may also grant share options
and discretionary bonuses to eligible employees based on the
performance of the Group and individuals.
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MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, aged 57, is the chairman of the Board,
an executive Director of the Company and a co-founder of the
Group. Mr. Hui is responsible for the overall corporate planning,
business development and management of the Group. Mr.
Hui has over 32 years of experience in the corrugated paper
packaging industry in Hong Kong and the People's Republic of
China (the”"PRC").

Mr. Hui Sum Kwok is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Ping (vice
chairman of the Board, executive Director, and substantial
shareholder of the Company) and Mr. Hui Sum Tai (executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company). Mr. Hui
did not hold any other directorship in companies listed in Hong
Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

Mr. Hui Sum Ping, aged 55, is the vice chairman of the Board,
an executive Director of the Company and a co-founder of the
Group. Mr. Hui is responsible for the business development
of the Group. Mr. Hui has over 32 years of experience in the
corrugated paper packaging industry in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

Mr. Hui Sum Ping is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (chairman
of the Board, executive Director, and substantial shareholder
of the Company), and Mr. Hui Sum Tai (executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company). Mr. Hui did not hold
any other directorship in companies listed in Hong Kong or
overseas in the last 3 years.

Mr. Hui Sum Tai, aged 50, is an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Hui has joined
the Group since its establishment and is responsible for the
strategic planning and day-to-day management of the Group.
Mr. Hui has over 30 years of experience in the corrugated
paper packaging industry in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. Hui Sum Tai is a brother of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (chairman
of the Board, executive Director, and substantial shareholder
of the Company) and Mr. Hui Sum Ping (vice chairman of
the Board, executive Director, and substantial shareholder of
the Company). Mr. Hui did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Hui Yuen Li, aged 46, is an executive Director, the chief
financial officer, the company secretary and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Ms. Hui is responsible for the financial
management of the Group. Ms. Hui is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Hui worked in an international
accounting firm prior to joining the Group in May 1997.

Ms. Hui obtained a Degree of Bachelor of Arts with Honours
in Accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in 1992.
Ms. Hui did not have any relationship with any Directors,
substantial shareholders and senior management of the
Company. Ms. Hui did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric, aged 55, is an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Chee is a practising Certified
Public Accountant in Hong Kong and a senior partner of Chan
Chee Cheng & Co., a firm of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Chee had worked in two international accounting firms in
Canada and Hong Kong. Mr. Chee is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario,
Canada.

Mr. Chee obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree of Commerce
(Accounting) with Honours from Birmingham University
in 1984. Mr. Chee used to be a non-executive director of
Tai United Holdings Limited (formerly known as Bestway
International Holdings Limited) and an executive director
of Global Mastermind Capital Limited (formerly known as
Mastermind Capital Limited), both companies listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Chee did not have
any relationship with any Directors, substantial shareholders
and senior management of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT PROFILE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan, aged 67, is an independent
non-executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Yip is a
managing director of the investment banking department
of Orient Capital (Hong Kong) Limited. Mr. Yip has over 35
years of experience in investment, corporate finance, financial
advisory and business management. Mr. Yip has a long track
record of working with various financial institutions, including
UOB Asia (Hong Kong) Limited as a chief executive officer,
and the investment banking department of China Investment
Securities International Capital Ltd., Hong Kong, Guosen
Securities (HK) Capital Company Limited, DBS Asia Capital Ltd,
Hong Kong, DBS Securities (Hong Kong) Ltd., Hong Kong and
First Chicago Hong Kong Limited as a managing director.

Mr. Yip obtained a Degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration with Honours from the National University of
Singapore (formerly known as the University of Singapore)
in 1971. Mr. Yip used to be an independent non-executive
director of Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited, a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Yip
did not have any relationship with any Directors, substantial
shareholders and senior management of the Company.

Mr. Wong Chu Leung, aged 69, is an independent
non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr. Wong has over 32 years of experience
in enterprise management and manufacturing operation
management. Mr. Wong is a shareholder and a director of a
metal ware manufacturing company with manufacturing plant
located in the PRC.

Mr. Wong did not have any relationship with any Directors,
substantial shareholders and senior management of the
Company. Mr. Wong did not hold any other directorship in
companies listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last 3 years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Tsui Yung Wai, aged 54, is the deputy general manager
of the Group. Mr. Tsui is responsible for the supervision of
procurement, logistics and human resources of the Group.
Mr. Tsui has over 21 years of experience in corrugated paper
packaging industry in Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to joining
the Group in February 2008, Mr. Tsui was a shareholder and a
director of a corrugated packaging manufacturing company.

Mr. Tsui is a brother-in-law of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok (chairman of
the Board, executive Director, and substantial shareholder of
the Company), Mr. Hui Sum Ping (vice chairman of the Board,
executive Director and substantial shareholder of the Company)
and Mr. Hui Sum Tai (executive Director and chief executive
officer of the Company).

Ms. Wong Yuk Kwan, aged 45, is the senior accounting
manager of the Group. Ms. Wong is responsible for overseeing
accounting operations of the Group. Ms. Wong obtained a
Degree of Bachelor of Business Administration majoring in
accounting from the University of Houston — Downtown in the
United States in 1994. Ms. Wong worked in an international
accounting firm prior to joining the Group in May 2002.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SREARE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31st
December, 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high corporate
governance standards to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and enhance corporate value.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the principles set out in the CG
Code.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31st
December, 2016, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code, except for code
provisions A.2.1, B.1.2 and C.3.3.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Code
of Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code and the Code of Conduct throughout the year
ended 31st December, 2016.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the
"Employees Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the
Model Code for securities transactions by employees who
are likely to be in possession of inside information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, consisting of
four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Hui Sum Kwok Chairman

Hui Sum Ping Vice Chairman
Hui Sum Tai Chief Executive Officer
Hui Yuen Li Chief Financial Officer, Company

Secretary and Member of the
Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee
and Member of the Nomination
Committee

Chee Man Sang, Eric

Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and Member of
the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee

Yip Kwok Kwan

Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Wong Chu Leung

The relationships between the Directors are disclosed under
“Management Profile” on pages 10 to 13.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
held by Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively.
The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for
the effective functioning and leadership of the Board. The
Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’'s business
development and daily management and operations generally.

The Board considers that the responsibilities of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer respectively are clear and
distinctive and hence, written terms thereof are not necessary.
This deviates from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
which stipulates that the division of responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31st December, 2016, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of
whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect
of his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
appointed for a specific term of two years, subject to renewal
after the expiry of the current term.

The Company’'s Articles of Association provides that all
Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees,
leads and provides direction to management by laying down
strategies and overseeing their implementation, monitors the
Group’s operational and financial performance, and ensures
that sound internal control and risk management systems are
in place.

All Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his/her
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation
and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.
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TRERME

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities
and to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director's responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements. Such induction shall be supplemented by visits
to the Company's key plant sites and meetings with senior
management of the Company.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development (“CPD"”) to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for
Directors would be arranged and reading materials on relevant
topics would be provided to Directors where appropriate. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant external training
courses at the Company's expenses.

During the year ended 31st December, 2016, the Company
organized two in-house briefings on updates on Listing Rules
and related matters for all Directors. In addition, relevant
reading materials including directors’ manual, legal and
regulatory update and seminar handouts have been provided to
the Directors for their reference and studying.

The records of CPD relating to Director’s duties and regulatory
and business development that have been received by
the Directors for the year ended 31st December, 2016 are
summarized as follows:

Directors Type of Training "o

Executive Directors

Hui Sum Kwok A and B
Hui Sum Ping A and B
Hui Sum Tai A and B
Hui Yuen Li A and B
Independent Non-executive Directors

Chee Man Sang, Eric A and B
Yip Kwok Kwan A and B
Wong Chu Leung A and B
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

(continued)
Note
A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to,

briefings, seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals,
magazines and relevant publications

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are
available to shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under “Corporate Information” on page 2.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric, Mr. Yip
Kwok Kwan and Mr. Wong Chu Leung. Mr. Chee Man Sang,
Eric is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in reviewing the financial information and reporting process,
risk management and internal control systems, effectiveness
of the internal audit function, scope of audit and appointment
of external auditor, and arrangements to enable employees of
the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the
Company.
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TREBRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee held three meetings to review, in
respect of the year ended 31st December, 2016, the interim
and annual financial results and reports and significant issues
on the financial reporting, operational and compliance controls,
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems and internal audit function, appointment of external
auditor and engagement of non-audit services and relevant
scope of works.

Since the Company has not engaged its auditor to review the
financial information in its interim report, the Audit Committee
has met with the Company's auditor once to discuss matters
arising from the audit of the Company's annual results and
other matters the auditor may wish to raise during the year
ended 31st December, 2016. This deviates from the code
provision C.3.3 of the CG Code which stipulates that the
Audit Committee must meet, at least twice a year, with the
Company's auditor.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members,
namely Ms. Hui Yuen Li, Executive Director, Mr. Chee Man
Sang, Eric, Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan, and Mr. Wong Chu Leung,
Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Chee Man Sang,
Eric is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors; and
establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review the
Directors’ remuneration policy and structure of the Company,
and the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and
the remuneration of the Non-executive Directors.

Currently, the remuneration of the senior management is
attended by the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. This deviates from the code provision B.1.2
of the CG Code which stipulates that the Remuneration
Committee should make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all the Directors’ and senior
management remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

Details of the remuneration paid to the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31st December, 2016
are set out below:

Remuneration band
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Number of senior management

SREEEHE

Nil - HK$1,000,000 0 - 1,000,000/ 7T

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely
Ms. Hui Yuen Li, Executive Director, Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric,
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan and Mr. Wong Chu Leung, Independent
Non-executive Directors. Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of Directors, and
assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

In reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee would consider a number of aspects
as well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in the
Company's Board diversity policy, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional
experience etc. The Nomination Committee would discuss and
agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board
for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider
the candidate’'s character, qualifications, experience and
independence to complement the corporate strategy and
achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Nomination Committee met once to review annually
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors, and
to consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The Nomination Committee considers an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained
and has not set any measurable objective implementing the
Board diversity policy.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company's corporate governance
policies and practices, training and CPD of the Directors and
the senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance of the Model Code and Employee Written
Guidelines, and the Company's compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board, the Board
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company
held during the year ended 31st December, 2016 is set out in
the table below:

EEZEE(#)
REZEE(F)

REZEGERIT—XAEH UEFRTESEgG 2L
BREREARNEBIERTES BN IR
EZRRARAIEERFREFAS LERBZRTIESY
B - IREZECRAETSCEAKNEZ L AAER
BEEVE BEYEBERESESZO(CIRE S ES
FEEAAGTEE R -

ST REXXED 3T IRATE 2

EF2CRIARAZERERRREER EFR
ERERBZBILFEERER AARAEETE
PINEERECBRERESR BTRETARERE

HEESIARETRETHRRALEEARE T FH
R R ©

EEcoHFERLE
EEFERBE_FT—A"F+_A=1t—HLEERT]T
ZEZEEH %$§Eaau§&$ ABRRAEZ

HE RSN TR

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/gREA

Annual

Audit Remuneration Nomination General

Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEpg EEg ERZE8 FMzEg REZEE RRBEFAE
Hui Sum Kwok HFHRE 4/4 N/ATER N/ATER N/ATRiE A mn
Hui Sum Ping TRT 4/4 N/ATEF N/ATEF N/ATE 1/1
Hui Sum Tai THRE 4/4 N/AT 8 N/ATE N/ATE 1/1
Hui Yuen Li A 4/4 N/AEF 11 n 1/1
Chee Man Sang, Eric A 4/4 33 11 11 n
Yip Kwok Kwan XAy 4/4 3/3 n n mn
Wong Chu Leung 37 o) 414 3/3 i 11 11

%EHH§$EEH§9| Q@g:g_/\_\ﬁz—'—:ﬂ

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of Executive Directors during the year
ended 31st December, 2016.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing
to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined
authority for implementation by key business processes and
office functions including project management, sales and
leasing, financial reporting, human resources and information
technology.

All divisions/departments conduct internal control assessment
regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the business
of the Group and various aspects including key operational and
financial processes, regulatory compliance and information
security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to
confirm that control policies are properly complied with by
each division/department.

The management, in coordination with division/department
heads, assesses the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides
treatment plans, and monitors the risk management progress,
and reports to the Audit Committee and the Board on all
findings and the effectiveness of the systems.

The management has reported to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31st December,
2016.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems.

LEBAHEE

[ B o e N AR B 4

EXeMREAHERRERERAMEESE - AR
AERBZEE - ZFHE TG EEIEMIEHRAREE

EREBBEEZRR MARERTEREERRER
MAEREL BB IEBERE -

EXgs ARG RET AR R REKRKEBRM
FEAEORERBUEERIEE YRINEFEE AR
B R E IR R N ARSI -

ECZEEWMHEFTERERAREE RAFPEEFE
MEEMEEEBK HITREERR -

ARAREHELRAZERREREF RIES - BB
MREXEAELHABE (BREEEE HERKH
g UHHRE ANBERREBRM) RAEREERE -

FrE 5 80,/ BRI E 1T AR EE AT 1 - DA R T A8
FEASEXBURTIZLZERVBRE BEER

RESZ2EHTENAR - ED8 IR SFET
BRI NEREZZETEERRK -

Eﬁﬁ&“%/%WIE%MT BREIEL S
RHEYHERERREARERER YAEREES

&%$§ﬁﬁﬁﬁm%&§ﬁﬁ&

EEECERAEFENELZECQERBE_T—RF
+ A=+ —H L5 EZE R EIE KA 30 E1E 5 Z 8 K

Q

NHEABEEBIRAERE
F Rt R -

I Jo R BB BE YR R G
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (continued)

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as
the management report, reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems, including the financial, operational and
compliance controls, for the year ended 31st December, 2016,
and considers that such systems are effective and adequate.
The annual review also covered the financial reporting and
internal audit function and staff qualifications, experiences and
relevant resources.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILTY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31st December, 2016.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report”
on pages 44 to 49.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration payable/paid to the external
auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
31st December, 2016 is set out below:

Service Category

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AREERAIPEIE (E)

EEEHERZBENIRT  URSEEEERSE -
R EBE T -RNFT_A=1+— EIM:EFZI—LME.
BRAMEZEHE(BREMWSE 2EBRERETE)
RRZHEER 2 EF‘%&’?E@D‘F?@%EM%EME&
NEPEETRRE  UARBETER KBRIBHAER -

EEARMBRRZEE

EEHRERHEARABE_ZF
BUEFEMBERR AL -

—RNE+-_A=+—

%%iT%ﬂ*EﬁEKTE@%I%)&&T“
FEREENERERARRZEMHXE

HARRE

ARRBIGBMABEARBRYHRER BT ZEH
BN FBAAZA9R [ BUZBENRE A

B oz %7 A
REBE_T—A"FT_A=+—BHLEEFEZEZRHE

RIFBCZRBAARBINSZBMEG s BERT S
FHENITZ N BN EHM OB T

Fees Payable/Paid

RIEER B BNER
HK$

BT

Audit Services FENZRE 1,550,000
Non-audit Services FEEIZ IR 143,000
1,693,000
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SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with shareholders through various
communication channels and a shareholders’ communication
policy is in place to ensure that shareholders’ views and
concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly
reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolution should be proposed for each substantially separate
issue at general meetings, including the election of individual
Director. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of
the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Under Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, any
one or more shareholders holding at the date of the deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company may at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company, to require the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

The Board does not aware of any provisions allowing the
shareholders of the Company to put forward proposals at
general meetings of the Company under the Company's
Articles of Association and the Cayman Islands Law (2016
Revision). Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals
at general meeting may refer to the preceding paragraph to
make a written requisition to require the convening of an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director of the Company are published on the
Company's website.

TRERARE

RER2ER

ARARAESEBBREABRREZE  BRRBBBEET
BEZRE BARRRBEANREIFERIZZHA -
ZBRE BB AERIT 2R -

RREBRRZFANEN  ARARERZREBIEAN
MR (BRERERHNES) RERASREFBILAEE
RIBLETRA AAERBRAG LREZREAREAMN
BETARR RELRBRETRERRZEZRR
REBITREARB LB 2 @us ETE -

BRERBEARRIRAE

REARARZAMERADAELSE  —BRZBNE
EFLEABATINARAERRBERAE LER
ZHREBATDZ—HBER  NMEMERSEENAE
AEAAARRZEFERRAWEREFR LB
KEEEUABREMEEZEAEBRHEHRAKRRK
FRIRKE MEAEAREEZFRERAMBEAARR
7 MRBREZ2ZR21BN EFEREEMZARE
APE2FRKALAUBRATABRAE  MARAZA
AEEFRALTENFAEHEZFRALTRESER
BRARKEMELEZMBEREMX

RBRRAELRERR

EZeUTAEBARRZABERAIRFAHEEX
B (2016 FERTA) BEMEXAFARRABRR AR
AZBRASLREZZFR BKRERBERKRE LIRS
ZER AU2RABRALEEFREANZREAARAA
BEREFRIAE °

FERRREBFREEEFNREFFBENEN AR A

5 o
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)
Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address: Workshops E, F and H, 22nd Floor

Superluck Industrial Centre (Phase 2)

No. 57 Sha Tsui Road

and Nos. 30-38 Tai Chung Road

Tsuen Wan

New Territories, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Chief Executive Officer/
Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2414 5508

Email: hopfung@hopfunggroup.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group's business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings.

The Chairman of the Board, all the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and the chairmen of all Board committees (or their
delegates) will make themselves available at the annual general
meetings to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year ended 31st December, 2016, there was no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents
and these documents are available on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31st December, 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

A business review of the Group, with description of the
principal risks and uncertainties and the likely future
development, are set out in Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 9, this
Directors’ Report on pages 27 to 43, and in notes 4, 5, 6, 7 and
29 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on page 50.

The Directors recommend the payments of a final dividend of
HK1.5 cents per ordinary share and a special final dividend of
HK3.0 cents per ordinary share payable to the shareholders of
the Company whose names appear on the register of members
on 5th June, 2017.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, it is expected that the payments of
final dividend and special final dividend will be made on 22nd
June, 2017.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the years from 2012 to 2016 is set out on page
124.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment

of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

Details of the movement in the share premium and reserves
of the Group during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 52.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Chairman

Mr. Hui Sum Ping, Vice Chairman

Mr. Hui Sum Tai, Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Hui Yuen Li, Chief Financial Officer

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan
Mr. Wong Chu Leung

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric and
Mr. Wong Chu Leung shall retire from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of two years
commencing on 15th September, 2016, which may be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in Management
Profile on pages 10 to 13.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the old and new share option schemes of the
Company are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options during the year:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

fE I

EEE®HE

ARARZERFTBBREAEZFBERN GV BRE
BzE24 o

TEBBEARAARBRERFAZES :

Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Outstanding
Option Date of price per at beginning during during during at end of
Category type grant share  of the year the year the year the year the year
BRE £1 £8
£5 B REBH SROEE i RATHE FARE ERTE FREH i AT 68
(Note) HK$
(F5E) BT
Directors
Bz
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok F24.10.2013 0.280 4,750,000 = (4,750,000) = =
FRERE
Mr. Hui Sum Ping F 24102013 0.280 4,750,000 = (4,750,000) = =
HRTRE
Mr. Hui Sum Tai F 24102013 0.280 4,750,000 — (4,750,000) = =
HRERE
Ms. Hui Yuen Li F 24.10.2013 0.280 750,000 = (750,000) = =
EROEIL G
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric F 24.10.2013 0.280 500,000 = (500,000 = =
BRAEXE
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan F 24102013 0.280 500,000 = (500,000) = =
REEE
Mr. Wong Chu Leung F 24.10.2013 0.280 500,000 = (500,000) = =
BERnEE
16,500,000 - (16,500,000) = =
Other employees F 2410.2013 0.280 1,611,000 = (1,611,000) = =
HitfES
Total for all categories 18,111,000 - (18,111,000) - -

2RER A
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
Note:

The vesting period of the share options granted is determined by
Directors at each time when the options are granted. Holders of share
options granted under the Company’s share option scheme may only
exercise their options during the exercisable periods as follows:

Granted under new scheme
RIBEFTEFE

Option type F

PR R A i

BRRE(E)
fi ot -
FUBREZ RBHAEENERBLBRESEE - A2

AR THERESAEAZTRUTITRATERSEZ
AR

Maximum% of share options exercisable

1.5.2014 - 30.4.2015

1.56.2015 -30.4.2016

1.5.2016 - 30.4.2017

As at 31st December, 2016, no outstanding share options were
available for issue under the Company’s share option scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2016, the
interests and short positions of the Directors in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO"), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEE®HE

EERRD HEROREZ 2#ES

BREXBEEEN R_E-—RF+-_A=+—H &
RARBRBEES RGN ((EHEAEGRE) E
B2 MEBFZERMAALH - HiBE LT T
ABRETREFRXZINRETRCME AR R
& BEENARAREABEE (EXRESF RS
EHRGIEXVED) 2B - RO RESTHEE ZE
wmERBWT

(a) Shares (a) B
Approximate
Company/ percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of Director corporation Capacity class of securities HEERITRE
34 AQR/HABEEER L) EHFYERER BREDL
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Interest of controlled 385,058,793 shares 48.32%
TREEE /NG corporations Long position (Note 1)
R EERER 385,058,793/ i 17
2 (M)
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Beneficial owner 26,581,411 shares 3.33%
TREEE /NS EREEA Long position
26,581,411 B 5
HE
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Company Interest of spouse 750,000 shares 0.09%
HRELE /NG| REzER Long position
750,008 i {7
55}
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Founder of a discretionary 385,058,793 shares 48.32%
TRERE /NG trust/interest of controlled Long position (Note 1)
corporations 385,058,793/ f 1
2RETELAS #7e (M)

XErEEs
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(a) Shares (continued)

Company/

(a) B#H (&)

EERRG - HERORES &S ()

Approximate
percentage of

Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of Director corporation Capacity class of securities HEERTRE
34 AR/ B EEEE 54 EHFYARER BREDL
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Beneficial owner 43,178,000 shares 5.41%
FRFEE /NG| EREEA Long position
43,178,000/ it 7
e
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Company Interest of spouse 2,188,000 shares 0.27%
TRFEE /NG| [ $ Long position
2,188,0000% % 17
55}
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Company Interest of a controlled Nil (Note 1) -
TRRRE /NG| corporation & (k1)
REEEER
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Company Beneficial owner 21,878,189 shares 2.74%
TRREE /NG| ERBEEA Long position
21,878,189/ i 15
e
Ms. Hui Yuen Li Company Beneficial owner 750,000 shares 0.09%
FEmA L AL F EXHBEA Long position
750,0008% % {3
HeE
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric Company Beneficial owner 96,000 shares 0.01%
BRAERE YN EREEA Long position
96,0001% % {2
e
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan Company Beneficial owner 300,000 shares 0.03%
EEHEE 7N ERBEA Long position
300,000/ & 17
e
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan Company Interest of spouse 400,000 shares 0.05%
ERHRE /NG| RBz#ER Long position
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(a) Shares (continued)

Company/

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

(a) B#H (&)

EEE®HE

EERKRG - HERORES 2#E ()

Approximate
percentage of

Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of Director corporation Capacity class of securities HEERTRE
Espnsg ARAF/HEEEEE 54 EHHARER R
Mr. Wong Chu Leung Company Beneficial owner 1,000,000 shares 0.12%
ESiSprikd /NG EXHEBEA Long position
1,000,0008% iz {5
HE
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Hop Fung Industries Limited Interest of a controlled 7,474 shares of US$0.01 each 74.74%
FRELE ("Hop Fung Industries") corporation Long position (Notes 1 and 2)
RELEER 7474R BREEC.01E T ZRH
HA (ME1R2)
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung Industries Founder of a discretionary 7,474 shares of US$0.01 each 74.74%
TREEE trust/interest of controlled Long position (Notes 1 and 2)
corporations 7474 G REE0.015% T2 R
2REETEVA/ A (a1 k2)
REEEER
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner 2,526 shares of US$0.01 each 25.26%
TRERE BELEAA Long position (Notes 1 and 2)
2,526/ B REE0.01% T 2 Ik fH
e (HE1R2)
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner 5,000 shares of US$0.01 each 50%
HRELE (Holdings) Limited BELBEEA Long position (Notes 1 and 3)
("Hop Fung 5,000 &R EE0.01% 7T 2 17
Industries BVI") e (ME1R3)
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung Industries BVI Beneficial owner/founder of 5,000 shares of US$0.01 each 50%

#RTRE

a discretionary trust/interest
of a controlled corporation

EnliaN/
PRETETAS
RELEER

Long position (Notes 1 and 3)
5,0008% & R E1E0.01% T 2 R fH
& (1 K%3)
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EESHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, EENRG  HERORESF2ER (&)
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)
(a) Shares (continued) (a) Btp (&)
Approximate
Company/ percentage of
Name of associated Number and issued share capital
Name of Director corporation Capacity class of securities HEERTRE
EEpg AR/ B EEEE 54 ELHHERER BABESH
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Gong Ming Hop Fung Interest of controlled 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
FREKE Paper Ware Factory Limited  corporations deferred shares of HK$1 each
("Hop Fung GM") RIELEERS Long and short positions
ARELHRBERAR (Notes 1 and 4)
([AERH]) 3,000,000 § R E
1B ERZEELR
HE AR (M1k4)
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Hop Fung GM Founder of a discretionary trust/ 3,000,000 non-voting 100%
FRELE BELNH interest of controlled deferred shares of HK$1 each
corporations Long and short positions
2RETEIA (Notes 1 and 4)
XEEEER 3,000,000 §RE A
BT ERERELER
R RKE (MEE1R4)
Mr. Hui Sum Tai Hop Fung GM Interest of a controlled Nil (Notes 1 and 4) -
FRRLE RERH corporation/short & (M1 R4)

position of a controlled
corporation
XEEERS/

EE
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EERHE G

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

EERKRG - HERORES 2#E ()

(a) B#H (&)

(a) Shares (continued)

Notes:

BT

The 385,058,793 shares are owned by Hop Fung Industries.
The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries is owned as
to 74.74% and 25.26% by Hop Fung Industries BVI and Mr.
Hui Sum Tai respectively.

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries BVI is
owned as to 50%, 11.81% and 38.19% by Mr. Hui Sum
Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping and Goldspeed Holdings Limited
("Goldspeed”) respectively. Goldspeed is wholly owned by
Goldkeen Assets Management Limited (“Goldkeen”) and
Goldkeen is wholly owned by HSBC International Trustee
Limited (“HSBC") in its capacity as the trustee of HSP 2004
Family Trust, a discretionary trust the founder of which is
Mr. Hui Sum Ping and the discretionary objects of which
include family members of Mr. Hui Sum Ping. Accordingly,
each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed
to be interested in the 385,058,793 shares under the SFO.

Hop Fung Industries is a holding company of the Company
and therefore an associated corporation of the Company
under the SFO. The entire issued share capital of Hop Fung
Industries is US$100 divided into 10,000 shares of US$0.01
each which is owned as to 7,474 and 2,526 shares by Hop
Fung Industries BVI and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively. Under
the SFO, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping
is deemed to be interested in the 7,474 shares of US$0.01
each in Hop Fung Industries.

Hop Fung Industries BVI is a holding company of Hop Fung
Industries and therefore an associated corporation of the
Company under the SFO. The entire issued share capital
of Hop Fung Industries BVI is US$100 divided into 10,000
shares of US$0.01 each which is owned as to 5,000, 1,181
and 3,819 shares by Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum
Ping, and Goldspeed respectively. Under the SFO, Mr. Hui
Sum Ping is interested and deemed to be interested in an
aggregate of 5,000 shares of US$0.01 each in Hop Fung
Industries BVI.

1. #385,058,7930% % {3 FiHop Fung Industries##
A ° Hop Fung Industries 217 i% 4<% Bl AHop
Fung Industries BVIRAR TR EEBT4.74% K
25.26% ©

Hop Fung Industries BVIZ B 21T A 2 Bl i
FFARB A - 7 & Tt 4 KGoldspeed Holdings
Limited ([ Goldspeed ) # B50%  11.81%
}%38.19% ° GoldspeedH Goldkeen Assets
Management Limited ([ Goldkeen]) & & #
A ' MGoldkeenEHSBC International Trustee
Limited ([HSBCJ)LAHSP 2004 Family Trust
RAZENEEMRA - ZfEtR—HEE2ERER
HEAVTARTRFERE 2HETEREED
REEEZREKRE - Bt - BREFFRBEK
Bl FAREEERTRTFEESBRBRER Z
385,058,793k ik 17 2 # % o

2. Hop Fung IndustriesAAR QA Z3EK AT Bt
BEBFARAEGKA BAAR ZHEBEE -
Hop Fung Industriesz 2 &8 E 2 17 % & A1003%
JT 9 /10,000 R EE0.015% T 2 R 1) -
2 BIEHop Fung Industries BVINFF#R %58 4+
B7.4740% 22,5260% - BIBEE» R E &M - 5F
HEEERTHRF R EH WA B EBHop Fung
Industries 7,474 GRREEO0.01E TR 2 o ©

8 Hop Fung Industries BVIJjHop Fung Industries
ZERAR AEBRBEFRBERL  BAR
A2 tAE A @ - Hop Fung Industries BVIZ &%
B #1TARA R100% 7T » 9 /10,0008 & A% [ (&
001t 2B’ HRIAFFRELE  FFART %
4 K Goldspeedf# 55,000 * 1,181%3,8198% - iR
BEFRAEGHKRY  ARFEERBERER LY
AHop Fung Industries BVI& #£5,0000% & i% A&
0.015 TR 2 #E 55 o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

(a) Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Hop Fung GM is a subsidiary of the Company and therefore
an associated corporation of the Company under the
SFO. The entire issued share capital of Hop Fung GM is
HK$3,000,100 divided into 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
and 3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each.
The 3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in
Hop Fung GM are beneficially owned by Hop Fung Group
(HK) Limited (“Hop Fung Group HK") which is owned as
to 91.43% and 8.57% by Hop Fung Holdings Limited(“Hop
Fung Holdings (BVI)”), and Mr. Hui Sum Tai respectively.

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Holdings (BVI) is
owned as to 50%, 11.81% and 38.19% by Mr. Hui Sum
Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum Ping and Goldspeed respectively. Under
the SFO, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and Mr. Hui Sum Ping
is deemed to be interested in the 3,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each in Hop Fung GM.

Pursuant to an option deed dated 19th August, 2003, Hop
Fung Group HK and its nominee granted to Hop Fung Group
Company Limited (“Hop Fung Group (BVI)"”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, an option to purchase from them
such 3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each in
Hop Fung GM. Accordingly, each of Mr. Hui Sum Kwok and
Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to have a short position in the
underlying shares of the option granted under the option
deed pursuant to the SFO.

(b) Share options

Details of the Directors’ and their associates’ interests in
share options of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Share Options” in this report.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31st December, 2016.
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EERRG - HERORES &S ()

(a) B# ()
M ()

4. ALRRADBARFZHEBRAR  BEIREZER
HEKY  BARARZHEEEZE AL ABzE
202 3 17 AR A 3,000,100/ 7T 5 A1008% & AR
H{E17 7T 2 % 3@ A% 13,000,000 F A% EE178 7T
2 IS Z IR FE A% - 5%3,000,0000% & BE EE 178
TZEENHERERECRAAEEEE (FH)
ERAR([ALEERA BEESHA MEEE
B8 8|5 Bl fiHop Fung Holdings Limited ([Hop
Fung Holdings (BVI)]) MeFr#R &L EHEH1.43%
$8.57%

Hop Fung Holdings (BV)Z B 317X 2N % Bl g1 &F
FRBE & - BT AR % & RGoldspeed# 50%
11.81%K%38.19% - REFE 5 R E KO - 5F
HEEERTAZFLAEAWEABEEAL LN
3,000,000 FREEBIA TERZREELR 2 #
3o

RIEBHMA-_ZTE=-"FNATNLBZHERER
B ALEEEERERBEABARRZEZEN
B A AlHop Fung Group Company Limited ([Hop
Fung Group (BVI)]) HHERE  LUREEEE
3,000,000 BREBEIE T A& Y AEERERE
EIER - F ML - RIBFEF RBEEG  FFHREE
& RFRFEE R BHES R EBIREZEAN
BEBBRES R ZABBIRDZAR -

(b) FERRAE
EENWEIHEALRARRERE 2 A

BN AR E [ B —&6

BREXEBREN RZT—A"F+A=+—H &
ERWEZHMEATBER AR B REEMHEEEE
ZEAB - HERDHESTEEEAEEIORE



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31st December, 2016, the following shareholders had
interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEE®HE

FERRRRG - HEARORES 2 #R

R-B—XET=A=+—R REALTREE
REE P EB6HTFE 2 BRMAEERBTH
ARE - TARERAR ARG SABBBRG B HEA

WA

=
=]
e

L

Approximate

Number of Number of percentage
issued share of issued
shares held options held share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity BEEEBT Frs Note(s) {HEBTRE
BREE HE =80} gy ¢ BREHE Bt = BMABD
Hop Fung Industries Beneficial owner 385,058,793 - 1 48.32%
EREAA
Hop Fung Industries BVI Interest of a controlled corporation 385,058,793 - 1,2 48.32%
XEEEE R
Goldspeed Interest of controlled corporations 385,058,793 - 1,2,3 4 48.32%
REEEER
Goldkeen Interest of controlled corporations 385,058,793 - 1,2,3 4 48.32%
ZEEE S
HSBC Trustee of discretionary trust 385,058,793 - 1,2,3 4 48.32%
PREFAZTA
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok Beneficial owner/interest of controlled 412,390,204 - .2, 8,5 51.75%
TREEAE corporations,/interest of spouse
EaRBAAN/ZREEER
o 2 #E e
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Beneficial owner/founder of a 430,424,793 -1,234,6 54.01%
HRTERE discretionary trust/interest of

controlled corporations/

interest of spouse
EnBAAN/ 2RETEVLAS

RN Ee P ol e
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 EEEHG

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Notes:

38 HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &

The 385,058,793 shares are owned by Hop Fung Industries.

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries is owned as to
74.74% and 25.26% by Hop Fung Industries BVI and Mr. Hui Sum
Tai respectively and Hop Fung Industries BVI is deemed to be
interested in the 385,058,793 shares under the SFO.

The issued share capital of Hop Fung Industries BVI is owned as
to 50%, 11.81% and 38.19% by Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, Mr. Hui Sum
Ping, and Goldspeed respectively.

The entire issued share capital of Goldspeed is indirectly held by
HSBC through its 100% controlled corporation, Goldkeen in its
capacity as the trustee of HSP 2004 Family Trust, a discretionary
trust the founder of which is Mr. Hui Sum Ping and the
discretionary objects of which include family members of Mr. Hui
Sum Ping. Accordingly, each of Goldspeed, Goldkeen, HSBC and
Mr. Hui Sum Ping is deemed to be interested in the 385,058,793
shares under the SFO.

Of 412,390,204 shares, Ms. Wong Mui is directly interested in
750,000 shares and is deemed to be interested in 411,640,204
shares of the Company under the SFO as she is the spouse of
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok, a Director and a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

Of 430,424,793 shares, Ms. Jian Jian Yi is directly interested in
2,188,000 shares and is deemed to be interested in 428,236,793
shares of the Company under the SFO as she is the spouse of
Mr. Hui Sum Ping, a Director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31st December,

LEMZRERAT

(I}EH&%E(\‘HQ@ CHERORES2ES

B &E -

1. #385,058,793% A% {5 FIHop Fung Industries# & ©

2. Hop Fung Industries Z B #7TA& A fiHop Fung Industries
BVI&%WNE?&Eﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁm.m%&z&s.za% AR R

B L EIE & - Hop Fung Industries BVIl R A#A
32385 058,793/ I8 15 2 #E % o

3. Hop Fung Industries BVIZE#{TlRAD BIHTFHRR
5 A FF R F % 4 KR Goldspeed# B50% ~ 11.81% &%

38.19% °

4.  GoldspeedZ & 8 B 31T f& A AHSBCIE B H100% %
¥235% B Goldkeen AHSP 2004 Family TrustZ ¥ 3E A
B E o HSP 2004 Family Trust/3— B2 #E(E
FHOHAICARTARTEE MEEERHEREET
RFEEEZREKE - Al - IREF %‘F&Hﬂf el -
Goldspeed * Goldkeen * HSBCR # A F L £ & B WA
A 5%385,058, 7930 ik 15 2 % o

5. 412,390,204 E T LT EEREARRQF
750,000/% B 5 ek - MEBEREAERARZESERE
ERFAREREZRBE  RIBFZHFRBEKD =16
LT IER ETEE RN R 411,640,204 i () 2 2 o

6. 430,424,793 RN T HREXTEEFBEARF
2,188,000k & 1z MR BARBEARARIZEER
FTEREARTEEZEREB  REFHLBEHO - &
fEEL LW AR AR RAR)428,236,793 A 15 2 ik o

%iyﬁ EEN R B-REFTZA=+—H K
AR W EEBEMEMATRARFTCETRATE
AAARER AR °



PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company's
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31st December, 2016.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Options” above,
at no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate. In addition, save
as disclosed above, none of the Directors, and any of their
respective associates were granted any right to subscribe for
the securities of the Company or had exercised any such right
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the transactions set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, no other transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company is or was materially interested, either
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEE®HE

BE HERBEARA ELTRH

HE_ZT-—R"EF+A=T—HILFE ERARIKH
EAMBARLEEE HEXBOARBEMR LT

BEROHBESF 22

BEXEEE] —SHREEIN A7 HEMEK
AA) [ ZR B RSP B B A R AR B P
SEFIV ML BEEFAERARBARRRE
MEMEABRBZBROIESMBERS - I BFEX
BREEIN BERFREFZAZIBBEALITNEERIRN
FRITEEAATRBEARRRES ZEF

EERNRG RUREEGHNZER

B AU BmAMEIOMH 2R HIN  RARHHEA
] ff 8 2 R B AT SLE MR A F R B RRFERE[
BENDAERMARREZTRETERAHEREE
RG2S  RHREREEH -
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EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates
were interested in any business apart from the Group's
business, that competes or competed or are or were likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's
business at any time during the year ended 31st December,
2016 and up to the date of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Company's business was entered into or existed
during 2016.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Article 167(1) of the Company's Articles of
Association, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses incurred by him or her in the execution and discharge
of his or her duties.

The Company maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance during 2016 and up to the date of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December, 2016, the aggregate
amount of revenue attributable to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for around 12% of the Group's revenue.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 50% of the
Group's total purchases and the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 15% of
the Group's total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
of the Company's share capital) has any interest in the Group's
five largest suppliers.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group did not enter into any related party
transactions or continuing related party transactions which fall
under the definition of “Connected Transaction” or “Continuing
Connected Transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which shall oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately HK$135,000.
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FTEREFRHER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors strive to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard
shareholder interests. The corporate governance principles of
the Company emphasise the importance of a quality Board,
effective internal controls and accountability to shareholders.
The Company has met the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange throughout the year ended 31st December, 2016,

except with the following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

o Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the division of
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out

in writing.

o There are no written terms on division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
The Directors consider that the responsibilities of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer respectively are
clear and distinctive and hence written terms thereof are

not necessary.

Code Provision B.1.2

. A deviation from the code provision B.1.2 is that the
Remuneration Committee of the Company reviews
and makes recommendations to the Directors on the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors only but

not the senior management.

o Currently, the remuneration of the senior management
is attended by the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive

Officer of the Company.

Code Provision C.3.3

o Code provision C.3.3 stipulates that the audit committee
must meet, at least twice a year, with the Company's

auditor.

o Since the Company has not engaged its auditor to review
the financial information in its interim report, the Audit
Committee has met with the Company's auditor once
a year to discuss matters arising from the audit of the
Company's annual results and other matters the auditor
may wish to raise. The Audit Committee has met with
the Company’s auditor once during the year ended 31st

December, 2016.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to achieving continuous improvement
in environmental performance and complying with the relevant
environmental regulations and rules. 100% wastepaper (old
containerboard cardboard) is used by the Group for producing
containerboard in the upstream business.

Environmental protection measures are implemented by the
Group to minimize the impact on the environment including
waste water treatment, installation of dust filtration and
desulphurization equipment, and replacement of wood with
natural gas. Two of the manufacturing facilities of the Group
have been accredited with the ISO14001 certification for its
environmental management system.

The environmental, social and governance (“ESG") report
of the Group disclosing detailed discussion on the Group's
environmental policies and performance will be prepared
in accordance with Appendix 27 Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide issued by the Stock Exchange.
The ESG report will be published in July 2017 on the
Company's website (www.hopfunggroup.com) and the Stock
Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk).

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the
public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has acted as auditor of the
Company since its incorporation.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hui Sum Kwok
Chairman
31st March, 2017
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hop Fung Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 50 to 123, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st December, 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31st December, 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code"”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)
Key audit matter

Contingent liabilities in relation to the tax audits on
the Group conducted by Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department (the “IRD”)

We identified the determination of the contingent liabilities in
relation to the tax audits on the Group conducted by the IRD
as a key audit matter due to significant judgements made by
the Group’s management.

The IRD is conducting tax audits on the Company and certain
of its subsidiaries in respect of the years of assessment
2004/2005 to 2010/2011. The Group appointed a tax
representative to respond to the IRD on its behalf and the
directors have determined the potential tax liability based
on their judgement, which may be different from the IRD’s
opinion.

The Group only recognises liabilities for tax and tax-related
expense when the potential tax liabilities are probable. Since
the directors consider that whilst the tax audits are still
on-going, the IRD has issued the protective assessments
for the years of assessment from 2004/2005 to 2010/2011
to the Group in order not to jeopardise the assessment
powers of the IRD which will be time-barred after 6 years of
assessment. The directors believe the Group is more likely
than not to successfully pursue the offshore claims and their
tax filing position, therefore it is not probable for the Group
to be required eventually to settle the potential tax liabilities.
Accordingly, the directors consider that no additional provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax in respect of the tax audits for the
years of assessment 2004/2005 to 2010/2011 is necessary as
at 31st December, 2016. However, the ultimate outcome of
the tax audits is uncertain and the potential tax liability cannot
be ascertained with certainty at the present stage.

The details of the tax audits and the uncertainty related to the
ultimate tax determination in relation to the tax audits are set
out in notes 4 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the contingent
liabilities in relation to the tax audits on the Group conducted
by the IRD and the sufficiency of the relevant disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements included:

o Obtaining and reviewing all relevant documents and
correspondence between the Group/authorised tax
representative of the Group and the IRD;

o Engaging our tax specialists to evaluate the
appropriateness of management’s assessment;

o Assessing whether the accounting treatment of the tax
position is in accordance with the HKFRSs; and

o Considering the adequacy of the relevant disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tsang Chi Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31st March, 2017
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}_? CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SR RkREMEEKER

; FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016

BE_F—ANF+_H=1+—HILFE

2016 2015
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ih=s FET FHET
Revenue U 2= 7 1,179,444 1,066,541
Cost of sales 5 & KA (911,748) (853,879)
Gross profit EH 267,696 212,662
Other income H Ao g A 8 14,710 13,319
Selling and distribution costs $HE R KA (67,590) (61,400)
Administrative expenses TTERAX (97,243) (88,619)
Other expenses HEbfx (24,571) (23,170)
Finance costs B 75 B AN 9 (5,045) (10,698)
Changes in fair value of ?}TE%EQI
derivative financial instruments ANFEZEH - 323
Profit before taxation T A0 87,957 42,417
Income tax expense FriSHiF 2 10 (11,570) (6,129)
Profit for the year, attributable ZiN/NETE F =N
to owners of the Company & i F 5 F B 11 76,387 36,288
Other comprehensive expense FEHEHMEEMAY
for the year:
[tem that may be reclassified HEAJFEEF 7HE
subsequently to profit or loss: EEmZIEA -
Exchange differences arising BE G INETE
from translation of foreign ZEH =
operations (93,352) (94,074)
Total comprehensive expense for ViN/NEIE7 =N
the year, attributable to FEIEFE
owners of the Company T HRAXBE (16,965) (57,786)
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
Earnings per share A& & F 14
— basic - ER 9.66 4.77
— diluted -8 9.62 4.52
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AT 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
RZF—NFF+ZA=+—H

2016 2015
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FHBT FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEKE 115 1,250,511 1,267,429
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights + 3 {f FA#E A & 1E 16 21,876 23,982
1,272,387 1,291,411
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 17 117,262 91,348
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E b E Y FRIB 18 129,198 174,784
Receivables from disposal of a subsidiary — H &t E A 7 2 fE WX IE 28 - 225,201
Deposits and prepayments e REMNRK 22,288 8,249
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights + 3 {F AR N HEE KA 16 544 433
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 19 547,601 151,589
816,893 651,604
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade, bills and other payables B5 ZENEMENKIE 20 282,207 211,803
Taxation payable FETRIE 11,638 12,222
Unsecured bank borrowings IR IRITEE 21 263,889 111,415
557,734 335,440
Net current assets RBEEFRE 259,159 316,164
Total assets less current liabilities HMEERRBEE 1,531,546 1,607,575
Capital and reserves BARKF#E
Share capital RE AR 22 79,682 77,871
Reserves s 1,377,063 1,402,467
Total equity, attributable to VNUNTE 2N
owners of the Company EihEsAR 1,456,745 1,480,338
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Unsecured bank borrowings EILIRITEE 21 22,617 83,404
Deferred taxation EEFIE 23 52,184 43,833
74,801 127,237
1,531,546 1,607,575

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 123 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
31st March, 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

HUI SUM KWOK s #%E
DIRECTOR 2%

NEOE128E2BANBRREN —F—LFE=A
=—=
REE

REZSWERRERR YA THNEER

HUI SUM PING & #HF
DIRECTOR 2%
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‘-}]5 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
yoeminns

4 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016

BE—E—AF+-A=+—HIFE

Share
Share Share Special Translation options Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total

Bx  RHEE  BHEE EXRE BEEGE  RENR st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR ThT T

(note)
(Mzt)

At 1st January, 2015 R-E-R%-f—-H 72,831 444,000 (107,444) 155,706 23,500 945,856 1,634,449
Profit for the year EEFE = = - - - 36,288 36,288
Exchange differences arising from #8527 2

translation of foreign operations [EXERER

and total other comprehensive ~ EEEMRE

expense for the year Fx e - - - (94,074) - - (94,074)
Total comprehensive expense ~ FEZERY A%

for the year - - = (94,074) - 36,288 (57,786)
Recognition of equity-settled RRARELE AR

share-based payments FOPAT - - - - 117 - 1,171
Exercise of share options TR R 5,040 9,074 - - - = 14,114
Transfer upon exercise of share — R{T{E R R ER A

options - 17,289 - - (17,289) = =
2014 final dividend paid ENZE-MERSRS = = = - - (11,610) (11,610)
At 31st December, 2015 RZB-RE+-A=1—H 71,871 470,363 (107,444) 61,632 7,382 970,534 1,480,338
Profit for the year FERE - - - - - 76,387 76,387
Exchange differences arising from HEGINEH 2

translation of foreign operations B X Z%E K

and total other comprehensive  FEE {2

expense for the year Fx s - - - (93,352) - - (93,352)
Total comprehensive expense  FEZERY 25

for the year - - = (93,352) - 76,387 (16,965)
Recognition of equity-settled TR RIEEE M R D

share-based payments FOPAT - - - - 253 - 253
Exercise of share options TERERE 1,811 3,260 - - - - 5,071
Transfer upon exercise of share  M{TEHE IAE R E#

options - 7,635 = = (7,635) = =
2015 final dividend paid BENZZ2-RERERE = - = = = (11,952) (11,952)
At 31st December, 2016 RZF-"F+=A=1—H 79,682 481,258 (107,444) (31,720) - 1,034,969 1,456,745
Note: Special reserve represents the difference between the costs of ~ FiiiE : Al EEARRRKE AR 2 HRERALNE R

investments in subsidiaries of the Company and the aggregate AELEREERABERA S S=-F5EEH
amount of the non-voting deferred share capital of the mMEEZMEARCRAEBE L Z5 -

subsidiaries and the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired as a result of the group reorganisation in
2003.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016

= —NFF—A=+—HIFFE
2016 2015
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FHET FHT
Operating activities REEH
Profit before taxation AT FE 87,957 42,417
Adjustments for: LIEH AT 2 -
Finance costs B 75 B AR 5,045 10,698
(Reversal of) provision for =) e
impairment losses on Z (ﬁé‘@)ﬁé‘%
trade receivables VERENSEi] (973) 2,858
Allowance for inventories FEBRE 40 -
Depreciation of property, M - BE R
plant and equipment RiETE 70,661 74,952
Release of prepaid lease B - R RETR
payments on land use rights HEHE 563 445
Interest income B U A (1,534) (2,722)
Change of present value in respect of i B BB 2 B e Uk FR B
receivables from disposal of a subsidiary ZHEE (8,335) (7,914)
Exchange difference on receivables & BT B A A FE R IE
from disposal of a subsidiary ZIEH =% 13,616 11,781
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEK
plant and equipment BEIE (311) (124)
Share-based payment expense LA 2 2 2 i 253 1,171
Changes in fair value of ﬁiiﬁﬂlﬁ
derivative financial instruments NEZE - (323)
Operating cash flows before MENE B BRI E
movements in working capital BeamnE 166,982 133,239
(Increase) decrease in inventories 7(_ 5 (380) sk (25,912) 20,013
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 K H b FE U s E e > 46,480 33,249
Increase in deposits and prepayments ? & K FEAF T 0 (14,039) (2,467)
Increase (decrease) in trade, bills 25 EEX
and other payables EL A 5RIE N Ok 4>) 71,704 (19,112)
Settlement of derivative UPTAESRT A
financial instruments, net w“E . FE - 343
Cash generated from operations BEEEZES 245,215 165,265
Income tax paid BB TS (3,801) (991)
Income tax refunded R EFT5 R 2 210
Net cash from operating activities RETHEE2EHSFE 241,416 164,484
Investing activities RETEH
Cash consideration Bl E
receivable from disposal of B AT Z
a subsidiary received IR & KRB 28 219,920 -
Interest received 2 H & 1,534 2,722
Proceeds from disposal of HEME  BENMEE
property, plant and equipment T8 18 792 455
Purchases of property, plant and equipment WEEME « = &K (141,095) (56,402)
Net cash from (used in) investing RETHELE (EFR) RS
activities FE 81,151 (53,225)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016

HE—F—AF+=A=+—HLEE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Financing activities &R E
Other bank borrowings drawn RRAMIRITEE 323,102 682,607
New bank loans raised HFILIRITER 91,300 205,531
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRMOPTEREIE 5,071 14,114
Repayment of other bank borrowings BEAEMRITEE (241,216) (832,442)
Repayment of bank loans EEFITER (79,219) (365,530)
Dividend paid B E (11,952) (11,610)
Interest paid BEFE (5,045) (10,698)
Decrease in trust receipt loans FEFEWRE FOR - (7,364)
Net cash from (used in) RMEETBHEE (FH)
financing activities ZEEFRE 82,041 (325,392)
Net increase (decrease) in RekBEEEE
cash and cash equivalents B ORL) FEE 404,608 (214,133)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BR&R
at 1st January BeZE 151,589 393,988
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ER# & s & (8,596) (28,266)
Cash and cash equivalents R+t=ZA=+—H
at 31st December RekBEEEE
represented by bank balances and cash RITHEHRERS 547,601 151,589
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company with limited
liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Its parent is Hop Fung Industries
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI") and its ultimate parent is Hop Fung
Industries (Holdings) Limited, a company also incorporated
in the BVI. The address of the registered office of the
Company is disclosed under Corporate Information section
of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 32.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRS 11  Accounting for acquisitions
of interests in joint
operations

Amendments to Hong Disclosure initiative
Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS") 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation
and amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

Investment entities:
Applying the consolidation
exception

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
HE—F—AF+=A=+—HLEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. EAMIEEURBEFTEN(EBHK

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Disclosure initiative”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
“Disclosure Initiative” for the first time in the current
year. The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity
need not provide a specific disclosure required by an
HKFRS if the information resulting from that disclosure
is not material, and give guidance on the bases of
aggregating and disaggregating information. However,
the amendments reiterate that an entity should consider
providing additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in HKFRS is insufficient to enable
users of financial statements to understand the impact
of particular transactions, events and conditions on the
entity’'s financial position and financial performance.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instrument’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers and the
related amendments’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
measurement of
share-based payment
transactions’

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
investments with HKFRS 4
Insurance contracts’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets

and HKAS 28 between an investor
and its associate or joint
venture®
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative*

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred
tax assets for unrealised
losses*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle®

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2019.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2017.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2017 or 1st January 2018, as appropriate.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income.
All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

Management of the Group anticipate that the initial
application of the new HKFRS 9 will result in changes
to the accounting policies relating to the impairment
provisions of financial assets and liabilities. Management
will consider whether a lifetime or 12-month expected
credit losses on financial assets and liabilities should be
recognised, which is dependent on whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk of the assets
and liabilities from initial recognition to the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9. Additional disclosures will also
be made in respect of financial instruments including any
significant judgement and estimation made. It is currently
impracticable to disclose any further information on the
known or reasonably estimable impact to the Group's
financial statements in the period of initial application
as the management has yet to complete its detailed
assessment. Management does not plan to early adopt
the new HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
contracts” and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the Standard introduces a b5-step approach to
revenue recognition:
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (continued)

2.

FERAMTEEMB®REER (FEMBE
(;é.;i%,ﬂuj) RERBMBREER 2B

EEMBREENEIGRIREEFELON
WALE)

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer o F—H: BIEEFZEH

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the o E—-H: HANEHFTZEHEL
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price o F=F: BEXRFHER

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the o FNF: BRHGERIEZENNPZELD
performance obligations in the contract s

e Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity o FRN: E(HEB)EBETBEOEER
satisfies a performance obligation mRUA

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15
to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

RIBBEMBRESERNFE 165 - & (HpEZH) ER
BTROEER RS ERNEETHBEZEY
KRB EFEIBRETELE) BARA &
BB mELRFEISREMAE ZHTE LRSI
BRIBRERBR - o BEMEME LR F155%
EREHEZZHE -

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in RIE—RF FAETH A ACSEMRERBE LY
relation to the identification of performance obligations, FEREERFEIEEBRENE T TFEAERE
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing MEE R EHZES 2ESE

application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures, however, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have
a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting periods.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases
by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low
value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront
prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in relation
to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Under
the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability
will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing and operating cash
flows respectively.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold
lands where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents
right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item
at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31st December, 2016, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$27,424,000 as
disclosed in note 25. A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect
of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or
short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In
addition, the application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the
directors complete a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure initiative”

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes. Specially, the amendments require
the following changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities to be disclosed: (i) changes from financing
cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing
control of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect
of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January, 2017 with earlier
application permitted. The application of the amendments
will result in additional disclosures on the Group's
financing activities, specifically reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances in the consolidated
statement of financial position for liabilities arising from
financing activities will be provided on application.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

”

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure initiative
(continued)

The management anticipates that the application of
amendments to HKAS 7 in the future may result in
more disclosures, however, the management does not
anticipate that the application of HKAS 7 will have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Other than as described above, the management
anticipates that the application of the other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the result and the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE —_FE—NF+_HA=+—HIFEZF

&

H Bt 7% R
8 )

% 3 & 2
ERME

I

r
P

==

X i

ER
Z 12

i
Ty 20
wg
e

\

S

ERGMENEIR BT HBEEBM ()

ERERMRRREAESGHEUNETRL 6
SARERESRE - AT EEEBRNEAE
BRHEAETRBETREE AR BRRENE
AHE -

BrrbadiEsS BERERY  EAEMHIEEM
BHRELENEERHBRELENZEITBTIEY
AEBMEERVBRABKREATE

FTEEFBE

BAMSRRADREMEBGHTAGRGLE
BHBREEA TR - 5N RARBRER
FIEBHERRHERARES EHRA (LS
SRR BB B R AR (AR 60 ) BE 28R
W -

REVBBRREBRELKAEERE  EETER
TARSREMRBRAFEFEERIN  FHEH
RTXZ&BE -

B SR AR — AR IR AR

on

BERRREREZAFEE

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 FE#®&

63



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE_T—NFT-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets".

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:
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e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) e ZE—H BHABBEERNGTEAALUR
in active markets for identical assets or BHEREEXAGNERMTS
liabilities that the entity can access at the ZHRE CREEFHAE)
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted o F-H WAHEBREEAENBENEERX
prices included within Level 1, that are e 4 4 A] B 2R 2 ) A BUHR (55 —
observable for the asset or liability, either FABEORERIN) &
directly or indirectly; and

e |level3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the o F=MM WHWAHBEREESBEBBEHTAUE

asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group losses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE_T—NFT-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting
policy for leasing below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land and buildings held for use in the production or
for administrative purposes, other than construction
in progress as described below, are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty
that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016

#

ECE—NFEf A=+ —HIFEE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE —FE—NF+_H=1—HIFFEZF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets comprise financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"”) and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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Effective interest method ERRFIFZE
The effective interest method is a method of calculating BERMNEREATE ﬁiﬂlﬂﬂ’ﬂiﬁﬁﬁkﬂiuﬁ
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating FEEHE R B AT E - B X /EEE

interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income
is included in changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise financial assets held
for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments recognised in profit or loss include any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including receivables from disposal
of a subsidiary, trade and other receivables, and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment
of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period ranged from 5 to 150 days, as
well as observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE_T—NFT-A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liability classified as
at FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in
changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL comprise financial liabilities
held for trading.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade, bills and
other payables and unsecured bank borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share
options reserve. For share options that vest immediately
at the date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of
financial position as a finance lease obligation.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid
lease payments on land use rights” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £ ."**..\

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme/
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities" carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or
permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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7 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 EEEPEELTE:

\, " FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE T AEF - fF—HILEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Contingent liabilities in relation to the tax audits
on the Group conducted by Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “IRD”)

As set out in note 29, the IRD is conducting tax audits of
the Company and certain of its subsidiaries in respect of
year of assessments 2004/2005 to 2010/2011. The Group
appointed a tax representative to respond to the IRD on
its behalf and the directors have determined the potential
tax liability based on their judgement, which may be
different from the IRD's opinion.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS £ I"%\

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Contingent liabilities in relation to the tax audits
on the Group conducted by Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “IRD"”) (continued)

The Group only recognises liabilities for tax and
tax-related expense when the potential tax liabilities are
probable. Since the directors consider that whilst the tax
audits are still on-going, the IRD issued the protective
assessments for the years of assessment from 2004/2005
to 2010/2011 to the Group in order not to jeopardise the
assessment powers of the IRD which will be time-barred
after 6 years of assessment. The directors believe the
Group is more likely than not to successfully pursue the
offshore claims and their tax filing position, therefore it
is not probable for the Group to be required eventually
to settle the potential tax liabilities. Accordingly, the
directors consider that no additional provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax in respect of the tax audits for the years
of assessment 2004/2005 to 2010/2011 is necessary as
at 31st December, 2016. However, the ultimate outcome
of the tax audits is uncertain and the potential tax liability
cannot be ascertained with certainty at the present stage.
Where the final tax outcome of the tax audits is different
from the directors’ assessment, further tax provision may
be required.

Allowance for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the directors of the
Company would evaluate ageing analysis of inventories
and compare the carrying value of inventories to their
respective net realisable values based on latest market
prices and current economic conditions. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in determining such
allowance. If conditions which have an impact on the
net realisable value of inventories deteriorate/improve,
additional allowances/reversal of allowances already made
may be required.

The carrying amount of inventories as at 31st December,
2016 was HK$117,262,000 (net of allowance for
inventories of HK$699,000) (2015: HK$91,348,000 (net of
allowance for inventories of HK$701,000)).
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\,' " FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Allowance for trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the directors of the Company take into consideration
the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

The carrying amount of trade receivables as at
31st December, 2016 was HK$127,814,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$2,406,000) (2015:
HK$174,691,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
HK$3,625,000)).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation, the directors
of the Company estimate the useful lives of various
categories of property, plant and equipment according to
their experiences over the usage of property, plant and
equipment and also by reference to the relevant industrial
norm. The useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed annually. If the expectations differ from the
previous estimates, the changes will be accounted for
prospectively as changes in accounting estimates.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as
at 31st December, 2016 was HK$1,250,511,000 (2015:
HK$1,267,429,000).
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the unsecured bank borrowings disclosed
in note 21, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
receivables from disposal of a subsidiary, trade
and other receivables, bank balances and cash,
trade, bills and other payables and unsecured bank
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The directors of the
Company manage and monitor these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and
monetary liabilities

A significant portion of the Group's sales is
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") and HKD and
significant portion of the Group’s purchases is
denominated in RMB and United States dollars
("USD"). The Group's manufacturing operations
are located in the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC").

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Certain bank
balances, receivables from disposal of a subsidiary,
trade receivables, trade, bills and other payables
and unsecured bank borrowings are denominated
in the foreign currencies of the relevant group
entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign exchange hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
foreign exposure should the need arises.
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The following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities against
the relevant foreign currencies. Sensitivity rate of
5% represents the assessment of the directors
of the Company of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the foreign currency exposure in relation
to the HKD and USD exchange rate fluctuation is not
significant as HKD is pegged to USD. For this reason,
the sensitivity analysis below does not reflect this.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EWMITH (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIBEKREEEERKE (£Z)
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued) S E k()
Foreign currency risk (continued) SR [ (4E
Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and IPTEINEEREEREREE (&)
monetary liabilities (continued)
At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of the RImER  ASENEBREEERS B
Group’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities BB EBINENEEEERER S
denominated in currencies other than the respective BEZ2E@mEWMT :
functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE i=F
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET THT
RMB ARE 57,740 262,457 307 79
HKD I 47,890 5,482 - 616
usD ETT 55,025 3,341 75,392 40,022
Macao Patacas (“MOP”) JRPJ#& 108 317 - =
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis SNEBURRE DT

TRFAJNAGEESEREEERZNER
BAEBIIMNE T EREZES% Z BEE - &
RELNRARNREEHEXRTREGH ZE
EAHE - BRESITE BB AN E Z H
AFRERER  URFRABELEUR
BREE R Z5%EH) - RABEEZRALS AN
BLERETHE  BEEETRETEXRRSY
ZNER BT EM - BT S - TXZ 8|
REDT W ERRULABR ©
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Non-derivative foreign currency monetary assets and
monetary liabilities (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis below shows the impact
relates to monetary assets or liabilities that are
denominated in RMB, HKD or MOP against the
functional currencies of relevant group entities, HKD
or RMB respectively.

In relation to monetary assets, where the functional
currency of the relevant group entity strengthens
5% against the currency in which the assets are
denominated, there would be a decrease in profit for
the year. However, in relation to monetary liabilities,
where the functional currency of the relevant group
entity strengthens 5% against the currency in which
the liabilities are denominated, there would be an
increase in profit for the year. A 5% weakening of
the functional currency would have an equal but
opposite impact on the pre-tax profit for the year.

6. SRIE(E)

(b) MBEMEEBERBER (Z)

mEEE ()
SMEER (B

FITENEEREERTE AR (B)

SNEBRRE DM (F)

TR ZHBEDTBRTIAARYE - BLsR
F¥ECEBEERREDIRAABSE
EERBNEEEETHARBZZE -

PEBEEMS  WABMEEER2NES
BEREEMRMFTEZESFHELS  AlF
EMBEEERD - AWM REKEEMS
HERASEERBZNEERRAEMRSR
SHEZ G FAES% - BIFEMEGEEM -
WEE BB  AFERAFEEXE
HRHREERZZE -

RMB Impact HKD Impact MOP Impact
ARBZE BTz E P~ &
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT THET FExR TEXT TFER TERT
Decrease in profit AER D (2,872) (13,119)  (2,394) (243) (5) (16)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (see note
21 for details of these borrowings), bank balances
and deposits. The directors consider that the interest
rate risk on bank balances and deposits are minimal,
accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk section of
this note. The Group cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR"), London Interbank
Offered Rate, prevailing interest rates offered by the
People's Bank of China ("PBOC") and prime rate
arising from the Group's borrowings denominated in
HKD and RMB respectively.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivatives
instruments. The analysis is prepared assuming
the financial instruments outstanding at the end
of the reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. Increase or decrease in a 50 basis
point represents the assessment of the directors of
the Company of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates. For the Group's exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings, if interest
rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group's
pre-tax profit for the year would decrease/increase by
HK$1,433,000 (2015: HK$974,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the interest
rate risk as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the year.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE-_FE—ANF+ZA=1+—HIFE

6. ERMIHE)

(b) BIKEMEEEBERBXK (&)

mEEE (&)
FF 2 B2

AEEAXEFIBRITEE (RFEEZF
BERKE21)  RITEBEERERA R
ERENXER EFRL RITEHRT
RZHEREBRRE - Bt - BAETHEE
DT °

AEBAZBBHABEZNEERF RN A
MEzRBESREREBNDA - BRAEED
BEDHABTRARBIE  AEEWNE
ERENETRREIZEPNRBBRITAE
HETEERTRRKED ®BAETH
ERB FEARRT AT 228
THERRREENKR KRS -

2

MEGREE DT

&

IATHBERESTIOBRERTETAEREAR
ZHFER B ML - DT TR RS H
KAREENERTEADREBAFEERERER -
MR PL0RES AR QR ESHF =
A A B 2T - AEEMZBRITE
BEEHFERR - 0F =%, 60EE
o MATBEMERERTE  AXEE 2
FEBAFEE SR, 101,433,000
TT(ZZ—F4 : 974,000/ L) °

ARABEFERS  ARFERERIL TEERBR

FARAZER BERESTAETKERMER
B o
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31st December, 2016, the Group's maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of
the Company has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high
credit ratings, the Group does not have significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist
of a large number of customers, spread across
diverse industries and geographical areas.

88 HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHE

6.

$RTHR(E)
(b) BEEREEREREE (&)

=B

RZEBE-—ARE+ZA=+—8H  xEEEX
SRHAREBTRETERAEEMBERX
MEHzEHEERR  HRERGEMHB
AREATREBERRBMEEE < REE

REEREEERR  NAREEERIR—
MABRBHFTEERE EEFHREM
ELIRAZ T - DAREMRERENER # 45 i M B 8 B R
NZEE- I RERERR - AKEE
HEFRENESER KBS - A
FREAAKREESREAELZBHEBERED -
WogUME  ARFAEERR/EEEZE
ERBE RERE -

HRXZBEHREBRREEFERENR
BEEFRZRT BRBEZZEERR
BIR -

BERBESTFRNESEEFRAZEX
RITAMERZEERBREFIN AREL
BEAXEFZEERR - BZREFEL R
REXF UYEBTRTEALMRE -



NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31st December, 2016,
the Group has available undrawn borrowing
facilities of approximately HK$242,954,000 (2015:
HK$319,839,000). The Group monitors its current
and expected liquidity requirements regularly
and ensuring sufficient liquid cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from reputable
financial institutions to meet the Group’s liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE_T—NF1_A=1—HIFE

6. SRIE(E)

(b) MBEMEEBFERBER (&)

RBELEE

EERRBDEALARN - ARBELRAS
ERERAXRZASRALFEAE - 4
MArEEEEREESRAERSHE
R HE - ERBERRITERZDAN
R THRERE A HRROZAE -

AEEXRBRITEEEAERDESZE
ERR -RZZE—R"F+ZA=+—H8 ' &
SEERRERANEE R & 4242,954,000%
T (ZZ— A% :319,839,0008 7T) » A&
EerHErEEmkBHRBESE XK
BREAEBREZADESEREERL
ZERMMIEES RN AR ERENERN
AEBZzEHERERERSEST K -
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A NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TWMIAE(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BIBEBEEEERKE (&)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBEZEE (E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables HEE R FIE K
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective  or less than 1-3 3 months 1-2 2-5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month month(s)  to 1year year(s) years  cash flows amount
ETH REXY -ERE =fEA AfFRRE
ERAE -EAR =fEA E-F  -FERF  WEELE REAE KEfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tién TR TERL TER TER TERL
2016 ZE-RE
Non-derivative FiEnRaR
financial liabilities
Trade, bills and 25 ZER
other payables AR5 - 281,779 - - - - 81119 281,779
Unsecured bank borrowings ~~ EERTEE
- variable rate -%8 19 138,409 31,443 96,039 22,082 822 288,755 286,506
420,188 31,443 96,039 22,042 822 570,534 568,285
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective  orless than 1-3 3 months 1-2 2-5  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month month(s) to 1 year year(s) years  cash flows amount
nEws BRERT S =R AR
ERHZ —f2Am =fA E-£  -FERF  BEELRE RELE BAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Thr Fhn TEn Thn Thn TEn
2015 —2-1f
Non-derivative FTEHKER
financial liabilities
Trade, bills and 85 RER
other payables Rt fERFE - 191,996 = 19,016 = = 211,012 211,012
Unsecured bank borrowings ~ EEETES
- variable rate -%8 27 11,360 39,572 64,334 36,151 51,340 202,757 194,819
203,356 39,572 83,350 36,151 51,340 413,769 405,831

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 month”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at
31st December, 2016, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$87,000,000 (2015: HK$10,000,000). Taking into
account the Group's financial position, the directors
do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

(c)

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, the
management reviews the expected cash flow

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016

BE —_FE—NF+_HA=+—HIFEZF

6. SRIE(E)

(b) Bi 7 = R

EEERRBE (&)

REBELEE (&)
RBELRFEREBEFK (E)

RERRDESRAR  EEERBETRMAH
BEAZBEEERARHE S AIBEER

information of the Group’'s bank loans with a BERRAZAEERTERNET RSN
repayment on demand clause based on the EE&RETRE
scheduled repayment dates set out in the agreement
as set out in the table below:
Weighted
average On demand Total
effective  or less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1month  cash flows amount
T EEXE  AFRE&
ERFI=® —fEAR RELE REE
% HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEx TET
2016 ZE-RF
Bank borrowings with a BEAERERER
repayment on demand clause  {EEZ HBTEE 1.79 87,139 87,139 87,000
2015 —Z-1f
Bank borrowings with a BETREEERESR
repayment on demand clause Rz HTEE 1.47 10,012 10,012 10,000
The amounts included above for variable interest rate WEBFERFERRZEHTIRREE
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are FEZMEMLE - BIA FRARETAER B EE

subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value

The fair values of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities, that are grouped in category 3
and are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis, are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis with the most significant inputs being
the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

(c)

FHHETANSEEFLEE

AFE

AEBENBERE MBI BILIFRRFER
RELEEREAEZMBEERYBTABLZ
RFE DREERMBABSRESTORD
REBRUERE  KFDERGABE/R
MR HBHEERBROHFIRE -

ARBPEEZRBREEVBERRANEHK
ALB 2 MBEERV B ABZREAESR
HRAFERSE
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WERDEEFR
Revenue U &=

Revenue represents the gross proceeds received and
receivable on the sale of goods during the year, net of
discounts and sales related tax.

Segment information

The Group’s manufacturing operations are located in the
PRC.

The Group's operations are organised based on the
differences in products. Information reported to the
executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM?"), for the purpose
of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance is analysed based on the difference in
products. No operating segments identified by CODM
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating segments
are categorised into the manufacture and sale of:

° Containerboard — corrugating medium and linerboard
° Corrugated packaging — corrugated paper boards and
carton boxes

Information regarding the above segments is reported below.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating and reportable segments:
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE—FE—NFE+ - HA=+—HIFEF

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WERIFBER(ZF)

(continued)
Segment information (continued) DEER (E)
Segment revenues and results DESY ERFEE
For the year ended 31st December, 2016 BE_Z—XF+-_A=1+—BItFE
Corrugated Segment
Containerboard Packaging total Eliminations  Consolidated
B EBag e HeH &4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T TiEn TR
REVENUE g
Extemnal sales HIMEE 450,297 729,147 1,179,444 - 1,179,444
Inter-segment sales NHEHEE 524,385 - 524,385 (524,385) -
Total b 974,682 729,147 1,703,829 (524,385) 1,179,444
RESULT E3
Segment profit DEFE 56,324 36,678 93,002 - 93,002
Finance costs BB (5,045)
Profit before taxation HAFIE 87,957
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 HE_ZT-—RAF+_A=+—HILFE
Corrugated Segment
Containerboard Packaging total Eliminations Consolidated
AR JiRaok3 DEEE Eaf e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T THT THL
REVENUE g
External sales HIMHE 340,356 726,185 1,066,541 = 1,066,541
Inter-segment sales PEEHEE 584,136 - 584,136 (584,136) -
Total @it 924,492 726,185 1,650,677 (584,136) 1,066,541
RESULT E4
Segment profit HEHFE 34,698 18,094 52,792 - 52,792
Finance costs SR A (10,698)
Changes in fair value of ~ f744BTA
derivative financial AHEZ 2E
instruments 323
Profit before taxation Gl TRAlNE 42,417
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Segment information (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies adopted in preparing the
reportable segment information are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of finance costs and changes
in fair value of derivative financial instruments. This is
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

No revenue from any single customer during the year
contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group

for both years.
Other segment information

For the year ended 31st December, 2016

Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit:

7.

Wik o BER (F)

N

DEER (F)

B R AR (E)

REA MO HENBRAZ G5 BOK RS
P2 NREE G FBERAER e

DHBFERRS DR ZFE - BRDEH
ERARTESRIEAFEZES - WA
REERETERRMERGCEBLERREZS
5 o

DEEEE L BIETHENE -
PREFER  HETANE-—FFRERZ I
BRBBAEBKZETEI0% °

B 5 HEH
BE_ZE—XRE+-_A=+—HBIEE
AESHFEREEZSE

Corrugated

Containerboard Packaging Total

R4 RiEE%# st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FERT TERT

Interest income FEWA 942 592 1,534
Release of prepaid lease ol L A

payments on land use rights BRHAERE 502 61 563

Depreciation e 58,931 11,730 70,661

For the year ended 31st December, 2015

Amounts included in the measurement of segment profit:

BE_T—RAF+-A=+—HILFE

SEAHMERREZSE

Corrugated

Containerboard Packaging Total

FEIRAR REe%E FCE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT FHET

Interest income FEUA 2,000 722 2,722
Release of prepaid lease F8 10 4 1 {50 FA

payments on land use rights ENAERE 384 61 445

Depreciation nE 61,430 13,522 74,952
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

44 B 3R 2% B BT L?
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016 ‘I K
RE—F—AF+= A=+ —HLFE

Wk o EHER (E)

(continued)
Segment information (continued) PHER (&)
Geographical information MEER
The following table sets out information about (i) the TRENEBONAEBRIRERINENE D 2
Group's revenue from external customers by location INEBEFWRRINVAEBIREEMEMEEI D 2
of delivery destination of the goods and (ii) the Group's ERBEEZER :
non-current assets by location of assets:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
HIREF S kRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT FHExT FHIT
PRC e 1,179,444 1,066,541 1,248,535 1,287,915
Hong Kong s - - 22,244 1,740
Macau SRFT - - 1,608 1,756
1,179,444 1,066,541 1,272,387 1,291,411
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEREE

The measure of the segment reporting of the Group
reported to the CODM for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment does not include
any assets and liabilities. Accordingly, no segment assets
and liabilities are presented.

AAEHRIZEERREFEROERRRT 2
RzAEBEDHHERLESATFNEERAE -
At - YEZSDHEERARE °

OTHER INCOME Hb g A
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other income includes: HABIE -
Exchange gains, net e N s - 388 3,436 =
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment Rz W 311 124
Interest income F B U A 1,534 2,722
Scrap sales REEmiHE 228 436
Service income BRFFUEA 8,086 8,899
Sundry income HIEIA 1,115 1,138
14,710 13,319
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9. FINANCE COSTS 9. B
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFIE 5,045 10,698
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FTEHAX
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current tax: BIEARIA -
Hong Kong Profits Tax ARG 465 425
PRC Enterprise Income Tax SR 2,754 1,074
3,219 1,499
Deferred tax (note 23) REBIE (FH3E23) 8,351 4,630
11,570 6,129

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

A portion of the Group's profits are earned by the Macau
subsidiaries of the Group incorporated under the Macau
SAR’s Offshore Law. Pursuant to the Macau SAR's
Offshore Law, such portion of profits are exempted from
Macau complementary tax, which is currently at 12%
of the profits. Further, in the opinion of the directors of
the Company, that portion of the Group's profit is not
at present subject to taxation in any other jurisdiction in
which the Group operates.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1st
January, 2008 onwards.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016 ‘ g
BE_T—NF1_A=1—HIFE '

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FiBHM%X (&)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FEFRBYHEGABRZMEMEE R R R
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or AT AE 2 SR

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Profit before taxation i B R 87,957 42,417
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of HEBNEHRE1656% (ZE—RHF :
16.5% (2015:16.5%) 16.5% ) 5H & 2 18 14,513 6,999
Tax effect of income not taxable for HBERBMMAZH BT E
tax purpose (3,630) (6,337)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A HIF X 2 B 1S &
for tax purpose 1,275 2,637
Utilisation of tax losses previously FRERAER 2 HIEEER
not recognised (18) (44)
Effect of tax different tax rate of R EBARREARZZE
PRC subsidiaries 2,539 1,200
Effect of tax exemption granted to RPN B AR EREHRBZYE
Macau subsidiaries (7,337) (1,752)
Tax effect of undistributed earnings of FEIBIE A & KD IKEF)
PRC subsidiaries (note 23) 2T 2 (ME23) 4,334 3,156
Others HAb (106) 270
Tax charge for the year FEMBEIH 11,570 6,129
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016

#

R CE—NFEF A=+ —HIFFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

1. FERE

7 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P cennurmn

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Profit for the year has been arrived at  FEFEE 0K
after charging (crediting): (Gt A) THIEIE
Depreciation of property, Yz - BB KR
plant and equipment ZinE
—included in “cost of sales” —&F A &N 67,016 70,972
— included in “other expenses” —&t A [EMREY 3,645 3,980
70,661 74,952
Allowance for inventories (included FEEE GIA [$#HEKA] &
in “cost of sales” and “cost of [FERERI 2 FERA] )
inventories recognised as expenses”) 40 =
Auditor's remuneration ZERN & 1,550 1,550
Change of present value in respect of  H & B A 7 fE U KA
receivables from disposal of 2R EEE*
a subsidiary* (8,335) (7,914)
Cost of inventories recognised ERAERT ZTFEKA
as expenses 911,748 853,879
Exchange difference on receivables S BB A B e Uk B
from disposal of a subsidiary* B H E R 13,616 11,781
Exchange gains, net PEH Wiz - F 8 (3,436) -
Exchange losses, net* &5 s - FEr - 1
Operating lease rental for warehouse AERBAZTYE Y
and office premises KEREHS 1,264 1,209
Release of prepaid lease payments on %[0 + {5 F7 #E ¥& <t 70 & 7/ 08
land use rights 563 445
(Reversal of) provision for impairment % 5 &k 5118 >
losses on trade receivables* (B BEREHE (973) 2,858
Staff costs 8 T
Directors’ emoluments (note 12) EE5Me (FFeE12) 29,708 21,272
Other staff Hih8T
— salaries and other allowances —Fr& R HAMER 92,400 89,456
— retirement benefit scheme — RINEFIFT B
contributions 10,643 10,761
- share-based payments —BRGEHZzEH 24 104
132,775 121,593

*

Amounts included in “other expenses”

* REAATEMEX]



NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
HE—F—AF+=A=+—HLEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERFETBRAEMERESHF N
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
Directors BEE

Other emoluments

HittE &
Retirement

Salaries benefit Share-
and other scheme based 2016
Fees benefits Bonus contributions payments Total

HE&R RIKER DYy
ik Hit3ER AL SRR XXk B
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR THERL TERT TET THERL TR
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok FARBLE A - 4,431 5,000 18 66 9,515
Mr. Hui Sum Ping ARFRE - 4,431 5,000 18 66 9,515
Mr. Hui Sum Tai TRREE - 4,142 5,000 18 66 9,226
Ms. Hui Yuen Li HEE - 826 100 18 10 954
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric MERALE 159 - - - 7 166
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan ELipepi 159 - - - 7 166
Mr. Wong Chu Leung BEhErE 159 - - - 7 166
477 13,830 15,100 72 229 29,708
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12 EERFIETHRAEHEREEFHH

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors (continued)

(%)

BEx(#)

Other emoluments

Hit &
Retirement

Salaries benefit Share-
and other scheme based 2015
Fees benefits Bonus  contributions payments Total

ek Rl NG
(kA HhiaH| PN SRR xfizxih g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TR TET TET TR
Mr. Hui Sum Kwok FARBLE A = 2,399 4,000 18 307 6,724
Mr. Hui Sum Ping Figon it - 2,399 4,000 18 307 6,724
Mr. Hui Sum Tai FRERE - 2,114 4,000 18 307 6,439
Ms. Hui Yuen Li AR L - 785 - 18 48 851
Mr. Chee Man Sang, Eric MERELE 146 = = = 32 178
Mr. Yip Kwok Kwan EEHEE 146 - - - 32 178
Mr. Wong Chu Leung BRRAAE 146 - - - 32 178
438 7,697 12,000 72 1,065 21,272

Mr. Hui Sum Tai is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to these directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office and no
director had waived any emoluments.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Employees

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2015: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments
of the remaining individual for the year ended 31st
December, 2016 amounted to HK$814,000 (2015:
HK$864,000), representing salaries and other benefits of
HK$518,000 (2015: HK$550,000), bonus of HK$290,000
(2015: HK$308,000) and retirement benefits scheme
contributions of HK$6,000 (2015: HK$6,000), for his/her
service rendered to the Group.

Bonuses to directors and employees were determined based
on the financial performance of the Group for the years
ended 31st December, 2016 and 31st December, 2015.

SoRBRENE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016 ‘l K
RE—F—AF+= A=+ —HLFE

12. %%&IE?TE&A%@H@&EE%‘?@H

]

AEBRAUESTMA LR Hbp@mi (==
—RE:OM) BARRIEBESZ  BEZHFHER
EXHH -BE_ZT—R"F+_A=+—8HLHF
E #TFT—fALZHE /8140008 (=ZF
— A4 : 864,000 L) * BREMFERAS B R HE
RIBF=H 2% < kHAEH518,000%8 T (==
— R 4 : 550,000 7T) * f£4L290,000/ 7T (=&
— A4 : 308,000/ 7T ) KR IR4& Al 5T E] 546,000
BT (ZZE—AF  6,00087T) °

EERREBZRADNZEHEZE_TE - "FT=A
=+ —HAERZE-—RAFEF+_A=+—HLEFER
SECUBRBET -

13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Dividends for ordinary shareholders of R AFEERERED K Z AN A
the Company recognised as TERREZRE
distribution during the year:
2015 final — HK1.5 cents per share —E-RFRE - F&1.551 11,952 11,610

The final dividend of HK1.5 cents (2015: HK1.5 cents)
per ordinary share and special final dividend of HK3.0
cents (2015: nil) per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31st December, 2016 have been proposed by the
directors and are subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EXERBIRNBEE—_ZT-—R"F+_HA=+—HI
FE 2RSSR EEB 5B (ZB—H%F:
1.6/ 1lll) K45 B R BIAR B B A B ARS.0/8 Il (=
Z-0F 8 HEAGAARABRRREERR
BEREG EHER  HAEE -
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on

the following data:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016

14. ERAER

B

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RRABHEBANCBESREAREGRNTIRAT

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Earnings BEF
Earnings for the purposes of basic SAHEEBRERREERN 2 B
and diluted earnings per share 76,387 36,288
2016 2015
Number of shares RO E
Weighted average number of ordinary stE&FREREF 2
shares for the purpose of basic BN INAE T £
earnings per share 790,594,074 761,329,439
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary EHER G BT
shares in respect of share options HarahkeyE 3,498,358 41,590,183
Weighted average number of ordinary :tEGIREE RN 2
shares for the purpose of diluted o E AR N AR S 81
earnings per share 794,092,432 802,919,622
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE—FE—NFE+ - HA=+—HIFEF

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BERZE
Furniture, Plant,
Factory Leasehold fixtures machinery
premises land and Leasehold and office and Motor ~ Construction
in the PRC buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BRi ERNE GAOSE R OBE
HERE it & kB RBAERR e hE kEIE it

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

CosT R
At 1st January, 2015 “E-1%-f-H 491,711 2758 51,562 16,836 1,437,549 12,062 - 2,012,528
Exchange adjustments (B3 8% (26,876 (95) (1,813 (494) (72,852) (320 - (102,450]
Additions R - - 375 215 23,279 1,283 21,265 46,417
Disposals HE = - - 9) (1,963) (1,138) - (3,110)
At 31st December, 2015 —E-R%TZA

== 464,835 2,663 50,124 16,598 1,386,013 11,887 21,265 1,953,385
Exchange adjustments B A% (28,171) (99) (1,922) (h28) (77,767) (336) (1,354) (110,177)
Additions R = 20,461 6,612 515 31,598 1,293 64,882 131,361
Reclassification Exip - - - - 74513 - (74,513) -
Disposals hE - - - - (7,441) (712) - (8,153)
At 31st December, 2016 —E-"ETZA

== 436,664 23,025 h4 814 16,585 1412916 12132 10,280 1,966,416
DEPRECIATION &
At 1st January, 2015 “E-1%-3-H 146,160 929 47148 12,239 424,639 10,008 - 641,123
Exchange adjustments (B3 8% (8,044 (34) (16301 (312) (17,044] (276) - (27,340
Provided for the year FERE 18,975 109 2,005 1,065 51,918 890 - 74,952
Eliminated on disposals (&R = - - (5) (1,752 (1,022) - (2,779)
At 31st December, 2015 —E-FE+-f

=i=f 157,091 1,004 47503 129771 457761 9,600 - 685,956
Exchange adjustments ~ ERHE 9,59) (40) (1,827) (376) (20913) (289) - (33,040)
Provided for the year EERE 17,914 17 1731 909 49,025 909 - 70,661
Eliminated on disposals it Bz - - - - (7,000) (672) - (1,672
At 31st December, 2016 —E-RETZA

== 165,410 1137 47427 13,510 478873 9,548 - 715,905
CARRYING VALUES i
At 31st December, 2016 —E—7ET-A

== 271,254 21,888 7387 3,075 934,043 2,584 10,280 1,250,511
At 31st December, 2015 —E-FE+-f

=r=f 307,744 1,659 2,601 3,621 928,252 2,287 21,265 1,267 429
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BB BRI

; FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016

BE—F

15.

16.

—NEF_H=F—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are depreciated on
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Factory premises
in the PRC
Leasehold land and buildings

the land element, if shorter

the land element, if shorter

Leasehold improvements 20%

Furniture, fixtures and office 10%
equipment

Plant, machinery and 3':% - 33'/:%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

The carrying amount of the above-mentioned
factory premises in the PRC does not include any
land element which is presented as “prepaid lease
payments on land use rights” separately.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND
USE RIGHTS

4% or remaining lease term of

4% or remaining lease term of

15.

16.

ME - BERRE(E)

FatE BERXEEE (EREIRKRINUE

BRORIBA TN ERITE ¢

o B 5 4%8 T 3 o 2 g T H
(B H %)

HELTHRET 4%t HD 26 A H
(AR EH B%)

e %%*W 20%

B KEBER 10%

WAERE

e~ R ERE 3/:%-33":%

RE 20%

3Rt AR B R P 2 B T B D B AR AR AR £ 3 B
Do REBNEBYRI R LERAERNEE
IA] e

TEAERNEERE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&x FHT
The Group’s prepaid lease payments 72N & + b FREFE(T
on land use rights comprise: HEFERIE
Land use rights in the PRC AL B 2 4 Hb s A A 22,420 24,415
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FEERMIEDT -
Non-current assets IERBEE 21,876 23,982
Current assets MENEE 544 433
22,420 24,415
Included in the Group's prepaid lease payments on NREBZ LM FRAEBMNBAETREH B HE

land use rights is HK$1,567,000 (2015: HK$1,628,000)
prepayments under processing arrangement which
represents the prepaid amount under an operating
lease for land use rights.
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138
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016 ‘;
BE-S-—AF+-A=+—HALEE

17. INVENTORIES 17. 78
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THTT
Raw materials R K} 109,313 82,473
Work in progress RS 824 468
Finished goods B8 S 7,125 8,407
117,262 91,348
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. E 5 Kk H fih fFE N K18
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Trade receivables B Sl E 130,220 178,316
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREME (2,406) (3,625)
127,814 174,691
Other receivables H b fE YRR 1,384 93
Total trade and other receivables E 5 R E MR I E 129,198 174,784
The Group allows credit periods ranging from 5 to 150 AEEGLTESEFSEIS0AFEEH - B AR
days to its trade customers which may be extended to BEETE SR PHEAEE EFE RBANKE
selected trade customers depending on their trade volume EmMTUNERZEES - T ARKZEEHARER
and history of settlement with the Group. The following HEOH (EKL A WXEZ B BRIk RE
is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of allowance BEEMEVN 2B S EWRIBZ BRER DT -
for doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date,
which approximates the respective revenue recognition
dates, at the end of the reporting period:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Within 30 days 30H A 123,091 166,494
31-60 days 31£60H 2,361 4,986
61-90 days 61£90H 2,073 1,112
Over 90 days im0 H 289 2,099
127,814 174,691
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016

#

EE—NFLZA=1+—HIFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an external litigation search to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits on a
customer-by-customer basis. Limits and scoring attributed
to customers are reviewed monthly. Trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired relate to customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance
are debtors with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$4,434,000 (2015: HK$38,748,000) which were past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. Such amount relates to a
number of independent customers that have good trade
and payment records with the Group. There has not
been a significant change in credit quality of the relevant
customers and the Group believes that the balances are
still recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The average age of these receivables
is 47 days (2015: 64 days) based on invoice dates.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due
but not impaired

18. EZ R HEMEWRIE(F)

EEMEAFELA  AEESRAINFFAER
R AEBRBEEEFPZGEREERRREBREF
REFERE -BEZFERBLICEEAR
Higer - BERBHEIN KR E 2 B 5 USR8
Y |ERN KRB ZEF AR -

AEEESRRFNBEGTRERDER
% 54,434,000 T2 EWRIB(ZE — R F -
38,748,000 7T) F ZER BN MEA R @A -
A 52 B 0 4B phOR BB R T ME - RS REE
ZENAEERBREBEIRNALHEZBULR
FEM ZERFPZEEBEXUWESEANRE B
AEBEEENUKREEBES  AEBWERZ
EREGEMBETMNERR BEZZEEH &S
FEW A F BRI 2478 (ZE—HRF :648) °

EAMERREZE S EWNEZ KRR

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FET

Overdue by 1 to 30 days #HI12=30H 4,434 38,748
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

19.

REMBHRRHEE W

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016 \

HE—F—AF+=A=+—HLEE

18. EZ R HEMEWRIER(F)

(continued)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REREZED
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Balance at beginning of the year F R 3,625 907
Exchange adjustments I 3, B (246) (140)
(Reversal of) provision for impairment & 5 EUKIE ~
losses recognised on trade B (BE) #E
receivables BIEEE (973) 2,858
Balance at end of the year FRER 2,406 3,625

Impairment losses were recognised based on the
Group's historical experience, aged analysis and internal
assessment of the recoverability of the debt. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash including time deposits of
RMB2,500,000 (equivalent to HK$2,793,000) (2015:
RMB2,500,000 (equivalent to HK$2,983,000)) and
USDG6,437,000 (equivalent to HK$50,017,000) (2015: Nil)
carry interest at prevailing interest rate from 0.530% to
3.250% per annum (2015: 3.250% per annum). Remaining
bank balances and cash carry interest at prevailing market
rates from 0.001% to 0.350% (2015: 0.001% to 0.800%).

Included in the carrying amount of the Group's bank
balances, approximately HK$57,206,000 (2015:
HK$36,431,000), HK$54,205,000 (2015: HK$2,912,000),
HK$46,001,000 (2015: HK$3,009,000) and HK$108,000
(2015: HK$317,000) denominated in RMB, USD, HKD
and MOP respectively are the currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities.

19.

MEBBEDREASEHERZBELR KK
T e Mo [ ) P BB AT A T AERR o AR BN
PR ARG A TAERR -

RITERRRE

BITHRBRERESBERBETENER0LE30%%
3.250% (Z& — R F : FHE3.250% ) 57 & Z
FHI 77 7 A R #2,500,0007T (48 & 722,793,000
Bm) (ZZ— R % AR%2,500,000T (HHE
72,983,000/ jT)) K&6,437,0003% T (1 & »
50,017,000% 70) (Z T — R F : ) o 88 TR 1T
“Eer IR 2 TR IBIT ™ 5 H %0.001%20.350%
—Z A4 :0.001%%E0.800%) 5t 8 °

AEENEBEEER 2 NEERUINZEE
AR - E - B RBPBIEZRITES
ZBEEE S B4 557,206,000 T (T — A
£ : 36,431,000/ 7T) * 54,205,000 T (= =
— A 12,912,000 J5) ~ 46,001,0007% 7T (=
T — A F : 3,009,000 ) &108,0005 T (==
— R4 : 317,000 7T) °
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BZ T NF1T-_A=1+—HIFE

20. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

The suppliers of the Group grant credit periods ranging
from 30 to 90 days. The following is an aged analysis of
trade and bills payables presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

A NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. E% - REREMENSFR

AEBZHEEREN FI0E0RANEER - T
JIRMNBERARERNBEEARMENZ2ESRE
BERNRIBZRED T

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Current 103,290 71,778
Overdue 1 to 30 days 2,893 1,050
Overdue 31 to 60 days #HEI31E60H 1,185 256
Overdue for more than 60 days AHIGOH LA £ 2,720 1,709
110,088 74,793
Payables for the acquisition of BEMFE  BERFK
property, plant and equipment Z PRI FIA 24,149 14,415
Other payables and accrued charges — E ff fE - 3018 [ fE =t
(note) S (BREE) 147,970 122,595
282,207 211,803

Note: As at 31st December, 2016 included in other payables
and accrued charges, amount of HK$5,700,000 (2015:
HK$19,807,000) represents transaction costs incurred for
the disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended 31st
December, 2014.

The average credit period on purchases of goods is
52 days (2015: 42 days). The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables
are within the credit time frame.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. UNSECURED BANK BORROWINGS

Unsecured bank borrowings comprise:

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016

BE —_FE—NF+_HA=+—HIFEZF

21. BEARTREE
EIRAPITEHEDIE

2016 2015
Effective interest rate HK$'000 HK$'000
BERRA=E FHET FHIT
Bank loans IRITE N 1.353% - 5.115% 146,460 136,659
(2015: 1.488% — 5.250%)
Other bank borrowings HR/TEE 1.159% — 1.950% 140,046 58,160
(2015: 1.490% — 1.700%)
286,506 194,819
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT
Carrying amount repayable’: EEEREE :
Within one year —FR 176,889 101,415
More than one year, but not —F A BB E
exceeding two years 21,797 38, 61515
More than two years, but not MEA EBTEBRRF
exceeding five years 820 49,849
199,506 184,819
Carrying amount of bank loans that BEAREEERERGERZ
contain a repayment on demand clause RITERZREE 87,000 10,000
286,506 194,819
Less: Amount due within one year B RRBBENTRZ —FR
shown under current liabilities E|HS R (263,889) (111,415)
Amounts due after one year shown RIERBAEYI R —F&
as non-current liabilities E|H SRR 22,617 83,404
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates * HESBIIBREHERER S EEETERA
set out in the loan agreements. HREETE o
As at 31st December, 2016 and 31st December, 2015, the R-E—RE+_BA=+—BE=-ZE—FF+—

unsecured bank borrowings carry interest at floating rates,
thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The interest rates are linked to HIBOR, prevailing interest
rates offered by PBOC, plus a margin, and prime minus a

margin.

A=1—

B ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁfﬂﬁgiﬁzg«@jﬂfﬁr S

A AEBERERSTEFRER - B@EF =X
HAEBRITRAZERE ATAMZBITHEN L
HERRKEENEREETE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BZ T NF1T-_A=1+—HIFE

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. SHARE CAPITAL 22. AR
Number of shares Share capital
REOEHE (AT
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THET
Ordinary shares of FREME0.105T
HK$0.10 each 2 EimR Ak n
Authorised: EERRA
At the beginning and ~ REFIRFL
the end of
the year 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: 2217 R &R IRAK :
At the beginning of REL
the year 778,713,000 728,305,000 77,871 72,831
Exercise of share I RE AR (Mi5E24)
options (note 24) 18,111,000 50,408,000 1,811 5,040
At the end of the year JAFLR 796,824,000 778,713,000 79,682 77,871

1 1 0 HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHE




23.

24.

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset. The followings are the
deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised by the Group
and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting years:

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016 4
BE—F-—NF1T-A=-1T—HILFE

3 FIE 5 16

MEBINEEMBRATME ETEEHBEEE
REBEEKEEE UTREAEEBR ZELERIE
BEEBE)RRABREFERNEREFEZE
& :

Undistributed
Accelerated earnings
tax of PRC  Write-down

depreciation  subsidiaries of inventories Total

mE  HENEAR
WEHE 2RDRKEF FE MR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT FHT THR
At 1st January, 2015 RZE—h%—H—H 30,909 8,326 (32) 39,203
Charge to profit or loss TEERNR 1,474 3,156 - 4,630
At 31st December, 2015 R-Z-—A%+-A=+—H 32,383 11,482 (32) 43,833
Charge to profit or loss RNk 4,017 4,334 - 8,351
At 31st December, 2016 RZB—RE+ZA=1+—H 36,400 15,816 (32) 52,184

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008 onwards.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company's share option scheme (the “Old Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 4th
September, 2003 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to selected participants for their
contribution to the Group. The Old Scheme expired on 3rd
September, 2013 and all options previously granted under
the Old Scheme have been lapsed.

The Company approved and adopted a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 3rd June, 2013 for the
primary purpose of providing incentive or rewards to
selected participants for their contribution to the Group.

24.

BRBHECEMREHE  BRHRDAGENER
AE-ZEEN\F-A-HEARNZAEmEIR
Z I B o

LR D X 4 2 X
BREXNRZBRES

RER-_FZT=FNAAMNABBIRER AR
FIERMZBRESE ((EFE D EZENAY
AEEELERMZEET2EEFHBBHEE -
EEER_F—=FAA=HEm MAER
BREMIRLZMEBRELERK -

ARRER T —=FXA=ZRARERRANE
Rt &1 ([ Jri\JJ) IZEMAHAKREER
BERZEE2RBEEHERBREE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE_T—NFT-A=+—HIFE

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 24. LR BRIz (&)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

Under the New Scheme, the Board of directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including executive or non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors), of the Company,
its subsidiaries, or any entity (“Invested Entity"”) in which
any member of the Group holds any equity interest, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity, any customer of the Group
or any Invested Entity, and any consultants, advisers,
managers, officers or entities that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group
or any Invested Entity.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of the passing of the
ordinary resolution for adoption of the New Scheme. The
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised at any
time under the New Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not
permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from
the Company’s shareholders in accordance with the New
Scheme. Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
or any of their respective associates would result in the
shares in the Company issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and with
a value (based on the closing price of the shares of the
Company at the offer date of each offer) in excess of
HK$5,000,000, such grant of options must be approved
in advance by the Company’s shareholders in accordance
with the New Scheme.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)

An option may be exercised at any time during the period
to be determined and notified by the directors to the
grantee and in the absence of such determination, from
the date of acceptance of an offer of the grant of such
option to the earlier of the date on which such option
lapses and ten years from the date of offer of that option.
A consideration of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance of
the offer.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of
the Company, and will not be less than the higher of
the nominal value of the share; the closing price of the
Company's shares on the date of offer; and the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer.

The following table discloses details of the Company's
share options held by the directors and other employees
and movements in such holdings during the year:

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE_T—NF1_A=1—HIFE

24, LB XN 2 (&)

BREXNRZBRESS(Z)

BRETNEREERASARAZ B AR
1T MABEE  AlHEAREBRERS®E
ERBERER R B HZ B e B R+
FREFAH REMBRERAMNIELRE -

TEEIHARAEZETE - ENFEREO @
B RAFROREFL BBz W ERKROBEE
RERMAAEEXAZFHRTEZRRE °

TERBEEHEEMAMEERE 2 AR RBRE
AEZEBBENFRAZEEHFT

Exercised Exercised
Exercise ~ Outstanding during  Outstanding during  Outstanding
Option type Date of grant price at 1.1.2015 the year at 31.12.2015 the year  at 31.12.2016
R-2-1% R=Z2-1F R=B-A%F
. —A-H .. T=A=t1-H ... T=A=t-H
BREER R AH ﬁﬁ% R AT FRTE B AT ERTE AT
BT
Granted under New Scheme
BB ARD
F 24.10.2013 0.28 68,519,000 (50,408,000} 18,111,000 (18,111,000) =
Exercisable at the end of the year
RELATHE 32,300,000 981,000 -
Weighted average exercise price (HKD)
EFHTEE (Br) 0.28 0.28 0.28 0.28 -

Note: The vesting period, which is the period from the date of
grant to the exercisable date, of the share options granted
is determined by directors of the Company at each time
when the options are granted. Holders of share options

et : BRHEBREZEEHARLAHEATEAR
HERE - TEARREERE KR ERE
B E o RIFRE T8 At BRI 2 B i

granted under the Scheme may only exercise their options Z R AME R B LAT AT AT 8 B 17 6 HL AR AR
during the exercisable periods as follows: E

Option type F Maximum% of share options exercisable

FHE R ATEERRERSES T

1.5.2014-30.4.2015 up to 50%
= Al E50%

1.5.2015-30.4.2016 up to 75%
= Al ET75%

1.5.2016-30.4.2017 up to 100% (to the extent not already exercised)

HEAE100% (AHKRITESEBR)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
HE—F—AF+=A=+—HLEE

:'Jjﬁ'}k
' ‘ }_2' NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
/

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 24. URHB X F2XH (&)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued) BREZARXZBRESE (E)
During the year ended 31st December, 2016, 18,111,000 HE_Z—XR"E+-_A=Z+—HBLFE EAF
(2015: 50,408,000) ordinary shares were issued at PHEREETEMRABEETR28EB T (ZF
the subscription price of HK$0.28 (2015: HK$0.28) —HRF :0.28F L) #7718,111,0000% (=T —H
each for a cash consideration of HK$5,071,000 (2015: £ : 50,408,000/%) LB D + LBREUGR &K
HK$14,114,000) upon the exercise of the share options 5,071,000 L (Z = —AHF : 14,114,000
type F. JC) °
The following table discloses the details of options type TERBPERBEEZE_FT—"F+_A=+—HBKE
F exercised during the year ended 31st December, 2016 E-E—AF+-A=+—RHLFEBITEZF
and 31st December, 2015: MRS
For the year ended 31st December, 2016 BE_ZT— X+ -_A=+—HItFE

Number Share price at

Exercise date exercised exercise date
RITEB#Z
THEAH TEHE R AP EE
HK$
BT
3rd May, 2016 —E—XRFRA=H 12,861,000 0.55
13th May, 2016 —ET—-RFRA+=AR 5,250,000 0.60
18,111,000
For the year ended 31st December, 2015 BE_Z—AF+-_A=+—HLHFE

Number  Share price at

Exercise date exercised exercise date
RiTEBRHZ

fTE B AR 1IfEEE f& 5 E#&
HK$

BIT

8th April, 2015 —ZE-AFMANH 12,000,000 0.76
10th April, 2015 —ZE-—hFMA+H 1,000,000 0.80
22nd April, 2015 —E-RFMA=-+=H 19,000,000 0.95
6th May, 2015 —E-RFHANRHA 13,158,000 0.89
8th June, 2015 —E-RFSNANA 500,000 1.02
21st September, 2015 —E—RFAA-1+—H 4,750,000 0.62

50,408,000
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24.

25.

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued)
The fair values of the share options at the grant date were

calculated using the Binomial model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

24.

REMBHRRHEE W

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016 \

HE—F—AF+=A=+—HLEE

UGB X N2 (&)
BREXNXZBRETE (F)

RIRE Az BREN A FEDER - EAER
AERRAZHABBET :

Share price on the date of grant Rz BB Z BB HK$0.2807 7T
Exercise price 1B HK$0.2807 7T
Expected volatility TEHR R IR 53%
Expected life from date of grant FRiZH HHRAT AR 5 3 years#F
Risk free rate 2 @ Fl = 0.538%
Expected dividend yield TERTR B X 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company's 875-day share prices before
the date of grant. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$253,000
for the year ended 31st December, 2016 (2015:
HK$1,171,000) in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating lease which fell due as follows:

25.

TE BRI AR IR AR A AR B B AI875H Aifd 2

RERBEZFIRETE - 28 FE R 2B F 5

EREEERTUEEYE  TERHRTARE
HEER ZRIEMEAE -

AEEEREE _T—F+_A=+—81t
FERAQNRMBRLZEREEEZAI LA
253,000 7L (ZZ— A 4F : 1,171,0008 7€) °

ReRERE

RBEHR  AEERBEIAJBUEREHEEAR
REEBEENFASE - BERTHIMEDE

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year —FR 10,067 341
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FE2FRAF (BEEEMRT) 17,357 113
27,424 454

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its warehouse, ancillary office
properties and car parks. Lease is negotiated for an
average term of two years (2015: two years) with fixed
monthly rentals over the term of the lease.

REMENFEASEETRERE WHHRA
MERFELzENEE HEZFHFHEE
RME(CT—1F : MF)  ARBEOHRE A
EFE A -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE-F—AF+-A=+—AILFE

26.

27.

'"a} NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
| SR SRR T

A

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 26. EAXREIE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHExT
Capital expenditure in respect of BEETHV BRI S B ISRk
the acquisition of plant and equipment B2 BB ik
contracted for but not provided in the W BB E ARF
consolidated financial statements 8,035 17,916

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME
Hong Kong

The Group has joined a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme"”) for its employees in Hong Kong. The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

PRC

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of their employees to the state-managed
retirement benefit scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme.

During the year, the retirement benefit scheme
contributions amounted to approximately HK$10,715,000
(2015: HK$10,831,000).
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FEBREEBEEMARFMELTESHE (18
BErtdl]) - BESFERBERHIERTRESFE
FEOIRBFIEAEREEEBEM - BE R
ECEERAKBEENDH  YABIUREAE
HZEESREE -REBRBESAERA  BERHE
BEEBARANEENLL RFABRE S BN
HR - ARERBRBESAE CE-—BERARE
BRI R E R R -

RirABakEMEmRa R HZREDE
SRS ARE R EIRE L XE

T E

AEEZTENBRAREERTERNLE ZH
RERERARBHAEXE - HEBLARERKSE
BrHMA—BoLXABERER ZRKRENG
B - ARBHRERRBANFEZE—BEERRA
At BIBUS R E B AR -

FER - RREN R4 A10,715,0008 T (=
T—F % : 10,831,000/ 7T) °



28. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 24th October, 2014, Hop Fung Group Company
Limited ("HFGC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into two equity transfer
agreements (the “Equity Transfer Agreements”) with
two independent third parties (the “Purchasers”).
Pursuant to the Equity Transfer Agreements, HFGC
agreed to sell and the Purchasers agreed to purchase
51% and 49% equity interests in Fung Kong Hop Fung
Paper Ware Factory Limited (“FKHF"”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HFGC, respectively for each purchaser, at
an aggregate cash consideration of RMB380,000,000
(equivalent to HK$481,173,000). A cash consideration of
HK$235,857,000 was received and a cash consideration
receivable of HK$229,068,000 was recognised at fair
value during the year ended 31st December, 2014.

The entire equity transfer would be completed by two
stages and within two years after completion of the first
stage. The first stage of the transactions for transfer of
49% equity interest was completed on 23rd December,
2014, and the remaining 51% interests was transferred on
21st December, 2016. Along with those Equity Transfer
Agreements, there were contractual arrangements
between HFGC and the Purchasers, limiting those HFGC's
controlling power on FKHF after the completion of the
first stage.

Based on all the terms and conditions of the
arrangements (which were entered into at the same time
and in contemplation of each other) and their economic
effects, the directors of the Company considered the
overall commercial effect of the two transactions was
to dispose of FKHF. Furthermore, the Group ceased
to exercise powers to direct the relevant activities
of FKHF after the completion of the first stage of
the transactions. Accordingly, the transactions were
treated as a single transaction whereby the Group lost
control over FKHF at the date of completion of the first
stage of the transactions. Gain on disposal of FKHF of
HK$378,802,000, which was calculated as the difference
between the fair value of the consideration, net of
transaction costs, and the previous carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities of FKHF, was recognised in profit or
loss during the year ended 31st December, 2014.

During the year ended 31st December, 2016, change of
present value in respect of the receivables from disposal
of FKHF and the corresponding exchange difference
amounting to HK$8,335,000 (2015: HK$7,914,000) and
HK$13,616,000 (2015: HK$11,781,000) respectively, were
recognised in other expenses and the whole amount of
cash consideration receivable from disposal of a subsidiary
was received during the year ended 31st December 2016.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE-_FE—ANF+ZA=1+—HIFE

8. HEKMBAF

R-ZE—NE+A-+MHE  ARAREEHRBA
AlHop Fung Group Company Limited ([HFGC]J)
HBREBIE=F ((ZEEH]) LM GHKREE
ek ((IREEERE]) - BEREEEG S
HFGCREHERZSEHRE S BB BEHFGC
2EMBRAF-BEALERRARAA ([BE
H58])251% k4% KHE - BReREBARE
380,000,0007T (48 & 14481,173,0008 7T) - B =
“ZE-NE+-A=+—HItFEHHE KR
% X {8235,857,000/ 7T * W E H A FEBRE
I 38 % KX {E229,068,000/5 T °

R AE a3 s o M E PR BT - WS E — R 5t
FREMFERNTHK - X5 2P —BE (HiEI0%H
BYER-_ZE—NE+-_A=-+=HBxK BT
BI%EEER_T—"F+_A-_+—H&EzZE-
BEERAZ SR EEENH HFGCEZEE A
FINANLHE RFITRE—BEERSEKREHFGC
RBEEG L2 o

BEZSZHE (DRABERREERFILFE
BN TEINL) Z FT B G5k R A1 A R 18 55 2 4807
Flzf A RAEERAMBR G2 EERmETE
ALEREAL - I AEBRRZZFE
BSERETBEEENIERBEA L ZBEELS -
At ZERXPERAE—RH MAKBRR
BB —RETERABRAEEBEELE 2 EHRE -
HE-_ZT-—NE+_A=+—HLEE HER
mA L2 W 5378,802,000/8 T (IR B2 AFE
BMRESKARBHEALEEERABLAZERE
ZEBTE)ENEEER

BHE-_Z—R"E+t-A=+—BItEE #k
EREAENERREZRELSLY KIERED
& 5 =% 5 7l 58,335,000 7t (— T — R F :
7,914,000/ 7T) 13,616,000/ ¢ (=& — L 4F
11,781,000 7t) - NHERBHEMHAS - Mt &
WEARZEKEEREEREBEE_T—~F
+_A=+—HILFEHHEHURE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE —FE—NF+_H=1—HIFFEZF

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 29. ZAREE
The tax audits conducted by the IRD on the Company M_EENE —EERFE T -TF
and certain of its subsidiaries in respect of the years of —— FRBFEEME %R?%)%E’JE$AE H +:F
assessment 2004/2005 to 2010/2011 are still on-going. HIB AR 2 RIS EZINEEITH
The IRD had previously issued estimated/additional MIERERRN T NEARA — T EF+A
assessments to the Company and certain subsidiaries :;ﬁ——ifﬂ _T——E A _T—_i
of the Company in June 2006, October 2006, March =A- —mME=A - —mmEAA -

2011, March 2012, March 2013, March 2014, September
2014, March 2015 and December 2015 amounting to
HK$30,441,000 in aggregate. The Group had lodged valid
objections with the IRD against the relevant estimated/
additional assessments.

Subsequent to the lodgement of the objections of the
Group, tax payment of HK$1,993,000 was made during
the year ended 31st December, 2006. Also, banker's

—Ei:ﬂ&ff £¢+fﬂﬁ$ T&$
RIZAETHWEB AR Y M BEINTR - HEs
#£ 530,441,000 7T - AEE ARG B
SNERR MBS B A R o

BHE_ZZXF+_A=+—HILEFE ~&E
BEXREER B X FHIE1,993,0008 T ° 5
% RNEED %R 17 & 3,828,000 TTIE A

undertakings of HK$3,828,000 were arranged by the S ERBR2EF  MBEBEREEXZER -
Group and had been accepted by the IRD as security Jkl:@l\' NZE 7/\¢+ H —E—mENA -
for the payment of the above-mentioned tax. Further, —NE+—A- —RHERNAR-ZT—RX

tax reserve certificates of HK$3,499,000 in aggregate,
in respect of 2005/2006 and 2007/2008 to 2010/2011,
pending the outcome of the tax audits and the objections,
were purchased in December 2006, June 2014, November
2014, June 2015 and March 2016.

E H,dn_fsgﬁi/_jj/\ﬁ)&f%gt
F/ —ETENFE_T—ZTF/_T——FHEE
f%’m%%m/\smgooo,%n NEFERBEZRE
Hjliﬂzm

As for the other estimated/additional assessments, the MEMGE BEINIFNS  EEFRAELAEER
directors are of the view that the Group is more likely AAJREK I B Z S B AR ZMANLIERESR
than not to successfully argue that the income of these B RZEWBARTENEBKEER At
subsidiaries was not sourced in Hong Kong and also these AEEZKAEDAERZSIRAMNTIE -

subsidiaries were not carrying on business in Hong Kong,
hence, it is not probable for the Group to be required
eventually to settle the taxes demanded under those
assessments.

In March 2017, the IRD further issued estimated/additional
assessments to the Company and certain subsidiaries
of the Company in respect of year of assessment
2010/2011 demanding for tax in dispute of HK$30,030,000
in aggregate, including an aggregate of HK$29,700,000
in four assessments issued with the same amount of
assessable profit to the Company and these subsidiaries,
in the opinion of the directors, pending for ascertaining
of which of them should be taxed (if any). The Group will
lodge objections with the IRD against these estimated
assessments in April 2017 (i.e. by the deadlines).
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29.

30.

NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

The directors consider that whilst the tax audits are still
on-going, the IRD has issued the protective assessments
for the years of assessment from 2004/2005 to 2010/2011
to the Group in order not to jeopardise the assessment
powers of the IRD which will be time-barred after 6 years
of assessment. The directors believe the Group is more
likely than not to successfully pursue the offshore claims
and their tax filing position, therefore it is not probable
for the Group to be required eventually to settle the
potential tax liabilities. Accordingly, the directors consider
that no additional provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
in respect of the tax audits for the years of assessment
2004/2005 to 2010/2011 is necessary as at 31st December,
2016. However, the ultimate outcome of the tax audits
is uncertain and the potential tax liability cannot be
ascertained with certainty at the present stage.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The remuneration of directors, who are key management
of the Group, during the year are disclosed in note 12.
The remuneration of executive directors, who are also
the key executives of the Group, is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.

29.

30.

e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE —_FE—NF+_HA=+—HIFEZF

HREE(E)
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to%%@%$%§ﬁkﬂ%&%%@%%$%

REENRBBER - B &L AENEE
BIEEE - Hit %%.m?%b‘" - E-

=+t—HES ?yt_jjmi/_;ﬁg FEZT
—RFE/ R —FERVPEFEZINBEERREE
MEBELERE AN EFTRR - BAEEN

BEZNRELER MRREBRRERTEER
HETLE -

EALTRS
BAEAEEITZEBABZESESRERAZHER

ME12RE - BITETTARARBEIETRA
B REZHEeAFHEZEEHRFEARRRT
BBBETE °
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
HE—F—AF+=A=+—HLEE

31. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 3. R MBMRRARBE
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT AT
Investment in subsidiaries RBRARIZEE 576,332 561,013
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE WS Fft /B A B 3K IR 1,435,489 1,395,621
Deposits and prepayments Be RIBEMHK 2,008 962
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERE 21,043 4,579
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS B B A B 5K IE (1,174,640) (1,144,936)
Other payables and accrued charges H T FRIB R EET X (28,166) (22,548)
Taxation payable FE B T8 (10) (906)
832,056 793,785
Share capital R AN 79,682 77,871
Share premium f& 10 % B 481,258 470,363
Share options reserve B - 7,382
Retained profits (note) REFE (M) 271,116 238,169
832,056 793,785
Note: B & -
Details of the movement in the Company’s retained profits are AABRBA Bz ESEEHIOT -
set out below:
HK$'000
FHET
At 1st January, 2015 R-—ZT—RAF&—HA—H 207,293
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year FEENEREEKESALE 42,486
Dividend paid BRRE (11,610)
At 31st December, 2015 R-_ZE—FRE+-_HA=+—H 238,169
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year FEMBREEKGERE 44,899
Dividend paid BERRE (11,952)
At 31st December, 2016 RZE—A"F+=ZA=+—H 271,116

1 20 HOP FUNG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED &% &®iZiRERAHE



NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REPBHRRNE W

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016 \
BE —_FE—NF+_HA=+—HIFEZF

—

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 32. X EffB AR ER

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st
December, 2016 and 31st December, 2015 are as follows:

R-B-—RE+-_A=+—RHAFk=
A=+t—BZXEZMBREFE ZZDT-

—hft+=

Place of
incorporation
or registration/

Issued and fully paid
share capital/

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued capital/
registered capital
and voting right

Name of subsidiary operations contributed capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMERL/ BORBERE/ FARFBEERITRE/
WEAREE EXE BEARE SMEFRRERAELS FEEH
2016 2015
% %
Chun Yik (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary shares 100 100 Trading of corrugated
Offshore) Limited MOP100,000 packaging
i CRPIEREERE) ERAR B L i@100,0008 9% RFERES
Fung Kong Shing Fung Paper Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Investment holding
Ware Factory Umited HK$2
BEALSARBERA 0 LRR2ET REER
Gong Ming Hop Fung Paper Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Provision of management
Ware Factory Limited HK$100 service
ARREEREERAR 0 EBR100E T REEE RS
Non-voting
deferred shares
HK$3,000,000 (note)
ERFEELR
3,000,000 7t (i)
Green Forest (QingXin) Paper PRC Contributed capital 100 100 Manufacturing
Industrial Limited* US$112,247,803 and trading of
(equivalent to approximately containerboard and
HK$764,494,899) corrugated packaging
RECEH)AEBRAA i B R7A112,247,803% T RRARREEE
(KR E R 764,494,899 TT) HERES
Hop Fung Consultants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Provision of
HK$2 management service
FLEMEBR BE E@mJ2ET REEERB
Hop Fung Group Company Limited BVI/Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Investment holding
US$600
RBRAHE/BE LERE00ET REER
Hop Fung International Enterprise Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Provision of
HK$2 accounting service
FEERPEERA ) LRRET RetesR%
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) NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

POV ELE:
\ 4 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
B2 —F—NFf+_H=+—HIFE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 32. T EMEB AR ER (&)

(continued)
Proportion of
nominal value of
Place of issued capital/
incorporation Issued and fully paid registered capital
or registration/ share capital/ and voting right
Name of subsidiary operations contributed capital held by the Company Principal activities
FMEL/ BRARBEREK/ KRRMFEERITRA/
WEARER BRI BARE aMEARRERZEELS EEXR
2016 2015
% %
Man Shung (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary shares 100 100 Manufacturing and
Offshore) Limited MOP100,000 trading of corrugated
packaging
ERCRMBEFEERY) BRAA i ¥ iBA%100,0002F7 % NEBEZEERES
Top Develop Limited BVI Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment holding
and trading of
containerboard
hEERAA ERRAHES ERRIET REARRERAE S
RRERHRERAA PRC Contributed capital 100 100 Manufacturing and
HK$23,000,000 trading of corrugated
packaging
HE EHRK IRk RERES
23,000,000 7
ABESEINER DR PRC Contributed capital 100 100  Manufacturing and
HK$25,000,000 trading of corrugated
packaging
i EaRA IRk 8ERES
25,000,000 ¢

Note: The non-voting deferred shares, which are not held by the
Group, practically carry no right to dividends or to receive
notice of or to attend or vote at any annual general
meeting of the company. On winding up, the holders of
the deferred shares are entitled to the distribution after
the distribution of HK$100,000,000 million to holders of
ordinary shares, as specified in the articles of association.

Other than Hop Fung Group Company Limited, all
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at 31st December, 2016 and 31st December,
2015 or at any time during the year.

@ Green Forest (QingXin) Paper Industrial Limited, BRzciz4%

@mARAT and ALEBORYNERAT are wholly foreign
owned enterprises.
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NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R MR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER, 2016
BE_T—NF1_A=1—HIFE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 32. T EMEB AR ER (&)

(continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, FRINEAR AR EESR AU NEBLENEER
in the opinion of directors of the Company, principally BEFE I AEBEWNERAR - BEERAE BEM
affected the results and assets of the Group. To give MBARERIESERREENITE

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has RMEBAR ARRBEEHAEBME TBEA
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. ZMBATR c ZEWBARNREBNEBE 2B
These subsidiaries are operated in Hong Kong or BVI. The BEE - ZEMBARIZTEXBHMEHT :
principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarized
as follows:
Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FEHEK FTEZEMY Cn= PNGTE 2 4
2016 2015
Investment holding BVI 1 1
AR RBREZES
Inactive BVI 1 1
HE EEBRZES
Hong Kong 2 2
B
3 3
4 4
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Year ended 31st December,

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHT FHIT FHT FHExT
RESULTS E4
Revenue W8 1,051,097 1,026,623 1,097,102 1,066,541 1,179,444
Cost of sales SHE KA (880,542)  (853,037)  (913,496)  (853,879)  (911,748)
Gross profit EF 170,555 173,586 183,606 212,662 267,696
Other income HAb U A 11,556 12,666 15,888 13,319 14,710
Selling and distribution costs  $4%& &5 $4R 2 (55,714) (60,423) (63,522) (61,400) (67,590)
Administrative expenses TERX (68,878) (71,602) (75,178) (88,619) (97,243)
Other expenses HEAx (23,717) (23,735) (24,707) (23,170) (24,571)
Finance costs IR IDWN (25,412) (24,737) (21,499) (10,698) (5,045)
Changes in fair value of PTESBMIT AR
derivative financial NEEZE
instruments 18,444 4,329 147 S28 -
Gain on disposal of HE M B A A
a subsidiary Z WS - - 378,802 - -
Profit before taxation AT A E 26,834 10,084 393,637 42,417 87,957
Income tax expense Fris B (6,245) (4,186) (4,365) (6,129) (11,570)
Profit for the year, attributable Z2AF#EHB A
to owners of the Company &1 FE F) ) 20,589 5,898 389,172 36,288 76,387
At 31st December,
R+=—A=+—8H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FH&T FH&T FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE
Total assets BEE 2,044,395 2,024,335 2,335,806 1,943,015 2,089,280
Total liabilities FEy=L (929,988) (874,537) (801,357) (462,677) (632,535)
Total equity attributable to RRARER A
owners of the Company JE(E s 8RR 1,114,407 1,149,798 1,534,449 1,480,338 1,456,745
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